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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars give in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Prime Intelligence
Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

LISTING

On 14 February 2018, the Company was successfully listed (the “Listing”)
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of share offer. The Listing has laid a foundation for
the Group’s continuous development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong”) Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”), Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Macau”) and the PRC. The Group markets itself
using the brand “Solution Expert’. The Group markets its products
through the sales of products which include biometrics identification
devices and other devices and accessories, and provision of auxiliary and
other services. The Group’s biometrics identification devices have one or
more of the following functions: face identification; fingerprint identification;
finger vein identification; hand geometry identification; and iris
identification.

The Group would like to share more details of its performance, financial
position and other information for the year ended 31 March 2021 with
shareholders (“Shareholders”) in the following section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

PROSPECTS

Apart from its commitment to the development of its principal business,
the Group will actively make progress to generate growth and strive for
potential and new business opportunities. The Group plans to further its
growth in existing business by strengthening its marketing capabilities and
expanding its product portfolio through enhancing software development,
with a view to further enlarging its market share in Hong Kong and Macau
and becoming one of the active biometrics identification solutions
providers in the PRC. As such, the Group plans to utilise the net proceeds
from the Listing on (i) launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the business plan in the Southern Ching;
(i) enhancing the quality of after-sales and strengthening the operation
support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the Southern
China; (iii) improving its information technology system; and (iv) setting up
a new and separate software development centre in the PRC to further
enhance and develop the Group’s software.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

With the latest spread of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) in
HongKong, the Group plans to diversify its business to maintain a healthy
portfolio. Leveraging on the experience of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), the Group considers setting up new business lines
including artificial intelligence technology solutions, catering management
and trade services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board
in carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the Group’s and Shareholder’s long term interests
will be maximised.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and the staff of the Group for their significant contributions.
| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders and
investors for their endless support. With the solid business base and the
effort of all staff, the Group will endeavour to open a new chapter in the
future.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

OVERVIEW

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC. The Group derives revenue from the following
business activities: (i) sales of products which include biometrics
identification devices, and other devices and accessories; and (i) provision
of auxiliary and other services. The Group’s biometrics identification
devices have one or more of the following functions: (i) face identification;
(i) fingerprint identification; (iii) finger vein identification; (iv) hand geometry
identification; and (v) iris identification. The revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$46.0 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 9.5% from approximately
HK$50.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to the net effect of (i) decrease in sales of
biometrics identification devices and other accessories by approximately
HK$3.3 million (or 9.8%) as compared with the corresponding period in
2020; and (i) decrease in revenue derived from provision of auxiliary and
other services by approximately HK$1.6 million (or 9.1%) as compared
with the corresponding period in 2020.

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and services
rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts during the reporting
periods.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales and services rendered was cost
of inventories sold. The Group’s cost of inventories sold decreased by
approximately 12.6% to approximately HK$14.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: approximately HK$16.7 million). The gross profit
margin dropped from approximately 48.3% for the year ended 31 March
2020 to approximately 43.0% for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
gross profit also dropped from approximately HK$24.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to approximately HK$19.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to (i)
the decrease in sales of biometrics identification devices and other
accessories; and (ii) the decrease in provision of auxiliary and other
services.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2021 were approximately
HK$24.7 million (2020: approximately HK$24.6 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$0.1 million as compared with the last year,
which was mainly due to the salary increment during the period.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK$23.8 million (2020: approximately HK$22.9 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$0.9 million as compared
with the last corresponding period, which was mainly due to the increase
in legal and professional expenses.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macau
Complementary Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year. The
income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$0.3 million (2020: approximately HK$0.4 million).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s Hong
Kong subsidiaries is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of
8.25% (2020: 8.25%) for the first HK$2 million of its estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on its estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million. Other Hong Kong subsidiaries not qualifying for the
two-tiered Profit Tax Regime are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) during the
year. No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided for the year
ended 31 March 2021 as the Group’s PRC subsidiary has sufficient tax
losses brought forward to set off against assessable profit for the current
year (2020: No assessable profits for the year).

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in Macau is subject to
Macau Complementary Tax, under which taxable income of up to Macau
Pataca (“MOP”) 600,000 (2020: MOP600,000) is exempted from taxation
with taxable income beyond this amount to be taxed at the rate of 12%
(2020: 12%) for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$7.1 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021, as compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$3.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The increase in net
loss was mainly due to (i) an increase in administrative expenses mainly
from the increase in legal and professional expenses; and (i) the measures
implemented by the governments of the PRC and Macau including
locking down to control the rapid spread and reduce the scale of the
infection of COVID-19, which have impacted the usual business activities
of the areas and disrupted the daily operations of the Group.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded the liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, bank borrowings and proceeds
from Listing. The Directors believe that with the new capital from Listing,
the Group is in a healthy financial position to expand its core business
and to achieve its business objectives. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
had no bank borrowings (31 March 2020: Nil). The Group requires cash
primarily for working capital needs. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had
approximately HK$59.2 million in bank and cash balances (31 March
2020: approximately HK$65.1 million).

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group has no outstanding

borrowings. Accordingly there is no gearing ratio.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

The ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) of the Company
have been successfully listed on GEM on 14 February 2018. The Board
considers that such public listing status will allow the Company to gain
access to the capital market for corporate finance exercise, assist the
Company in the future business development, enhance the Group’s
corporate profile and recognition and strengthen its competitiveness.

Looking forward, the Group plans to generate further growth in existing
business by strengthening its marketing capabilities and expanding its
product portfolio through enhancing software development, with a view to
further enlarging its market share in Hong Kong and Macau and
becoming one of the active biometrics identification solutions providers in
the PRC. As such, the Group plans to utilise the net proceeds from Listing
on (i) launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint identification
devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the Southern
China; (i) enhancing the quality of after-sales services and strengthening
the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China; (iii) improving its information technology system; and (iv)
setting up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC
to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

With the latest spread of COVID-19 in Hong Kong, the Group plans to
diversify its business to maintain a healthy portfolio. Leveraging on the
experience of the Directors, the Group considers setting up new business
lines including artificial intelligence technology solutions, catering
management and trade services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 71 employees. The
Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$24.7 million (2020: approximately HK$24.6 million).
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practise and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with its employees. The remuneration
payable to its employees includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits
and incentives include training and share option.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the
Group’s employees have participated in the basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury
insurance, maternity insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC ((FF2E A R 2R B+t & R[22 )), and housing fund prescribed
by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund ((EE A A&
EIBIEM)). Al PRC based employees have the right to participate in the
social insurance and housing provident fund schemes.

Capital Expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$0.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately HK$0.1 million).

Capital Commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency
risk.

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”) and MOP. The Group has certain exposure to
foreign currency risk as some of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective Group entities such as United Stated dollars
(“US$”), RMB and EURO. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities.
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The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
exposure during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
any plan for material investments or capital assets.

Charges over Assets of the Group
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, there were no charges over assets of the
Group.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the then Shareholders
on 18 January 2018 for the primary purpose to attract, retain and
motivate talented participants, to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employees, executive Directors, non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted, after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain
in full force and effect and share options which are granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the prospectus (the “Prospectus”)
published by the Company in relation to the Listing. No share option has
been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Use of Proceeds and Actual Progress of the Group’s Business fiSRIEARRAEBEKBENERERE
Objectives

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees ~— FMETERUEFEE (B8 A QT H AR
and other related expenses paid by the Company) which amounted to &)%) 5445 B &8 BRERRER [EBEELE
approximately HK$44.5 million will be used for the intended purposes as  B§ | —&ifr#itEAig - U TrEABEEAFEHREAH A
set out in the section headed “Statement of Business Objectives and  IFFISIEFENER B

Strategies” of the Prospectus. Set out below is the actual usage of net

proceeds up to the date of this annual report:

Net
proceeds Utilised Unutilised
FRGRIERH 285A i R B A

HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEBT

Expanding the business in the hREEHEER
Southern China
— launch of affordable locally manufactured — — # H As i &3 7] B JE 41

fingerprint identification devices HBRIEE 156.8 - 15.8
— enhancement of the quality of after-sales — I25&%REHNE E LN
services and strengthening of the EEYE
operation support 51 (5.1) -
Improving the information BUEE MBI RA
technology system 5.0 (5.0 -

Setting up a new and separate software Rt Bl 7 — 1837 6998 ST E4E B B

development centre in the PRC to FONE—SRARBREAEE
further enhance and develop the BB
Group’s software 15.2 (11.2) 4.0
Working capital HEES 3.4 (3.4) =
445 (24.7) 19.8
4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group’s business objectives are to
further its growth in existing business by strengthening marketing
capabilities and expanding product portfolio through enhancing software
development, in order to further enlarge its market share in Hong Kong
and Macau and to become one of the active biometrics identification
solutions providers in the PRC. The Directors intend to achieve the
objectives by (i) launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China; (ii) enhancing the quality of after-sales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China; (iii) improving the information technology
system; and (iv) setting up a new and separate software development
centre in the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.8 million of net
proceeds to launch affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China. The Group has not yet launched affordable locally
manufactured fingerprint identification devices. The Group is reviewing the
needs and timeframe for launch of affordable locally manufactured
fingerprint identification devices so as to capture the above-mentioned
low-end market in the PRC.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$5.1 million of net
proceeds to enhance the quality of after-sales services and to strengthen
the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China. As at 31 March 2021, a total of approximately HK$5.1
million was spent on enhancing the quality of after-sales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$5.0 million of net
proceeds to improve the information technology system. As at 31 March
2021, a total of approximately HK$5.0 million was spent on improving the
information technology system.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.2 million of net
proceeds to set up a new and separate software development centre in
the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software. As at 31
March 2021, a total of approximately HK$11.2 million was spent on
setting up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC
to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$3.4 million of net

proceeds to working capital. As at 31 March 2021, a total of
approximately HK$3.4 million was spent on working capital.

14

HANBREIZFAHE - ARBOEEBERBRNAE
HEES IR HAEEAERES  £E—FPERER
BEL B HEE-FEARBTBLRFINTHIEEER
A ERE BB ERR R REER - &
ERBEBUTHIVERBR : (HEHAEER B
ARPIEBERINRERLREBEN D : ()52
SERRENEERNREERIERNRERBESR
BatElm —8 0 (BCEEMMRER  RW)RHE
FRSL — [ B B LR R B R D A — AR TT KRR B R
SEEET

REFEFAO15.8ARETHMEFIRFEMEL A
WEIER B ERSGIRIE BF AR ERDLEEK S
B — &R o AN SR B i R HE R A BLUE T B R BRI
B ARBRERT AT EMRL A EET B EEK
BAIKE - TERE HER - ARE Dl BRER T
SIS

REBEAEBANSAEEBTHRAERBEFARSE
BIRBHEERNBEETRIEAMBREREER
ZW—a 5 - R2021F3A31H  ARO51EEET
ARIEEERRENEERNGEEIRIFANEER
R B —EH o

AREBEBHRO5.0EEBTHAEREFELESR
AR RS - R2021F3A31H - ARWALOBHEE
TLRARBEE A B R

REBHESAN 1525 BB THTEHRIBFENTEH
S — EFT B L E R B AR O DA — SR R EE AR
EEREM - R2021F3A31H AHHNBF11288
PSR ER R BARR S — BT 0 B LB R B L - DA
—HRARAEREENER M -

AEENESHANA4EEBLNMERBEFEELSS
BES - M2021FE3 A3 B AHNAESLAEEELH
EEBES -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (“Mr. Tony Yuen”), aged 50, is one of the
founders of the Group, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director,
the chief executive officer of the Group and one of the controlling
shareholders (the “Controlling Shareholders”) of the Company. He
joined the Group as a director on 28 June 1999 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 6 November 2015. He is responsible for
major decision-making, overall strategic planning and day-to-day
business management. Mr. Tony Yuen is a director of Power Truth
Holdings Limited (“Power Truth”), Solution Expert Technology Limited
(“SE Technology”), Solution Expert Engineering Limited (“SE
Engineering”), Solution Expert Technology (R&D) Limited (“SE R&D”),
and Solution Expert Technology (Macau) Limited (“SE Macau”). He is
also the chairman, general manager and legal representative of Solution
Expert Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* (“SE Shenzhen”). In addition, he
is a director and a shareholder holding 85% of the entire issued shares of
Delighting View Global Limited (“Delighting View”).

Mr. Tony Yuen has over 24 years of experience in software programming.
He obtained a bachelor of engineering degree from the University of Hong
Kong in January 1995. Before he joined the Group, he was the head of
information systems department of PENTAX group in Hong Kong from
1996 to 1998, and was responsible for developing networking and
computer solution systems in different computerisation projects. Mr. Tony
Yuen has not held any directorship in any other public companies, the
securities of which are or have been listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Tony Yuen is the brother of Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders), the spouse of Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and the brother-in-law of Mr. Joseph
Yam (the non-executive Director).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEERBE

Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline (“Ms. Pauline Yuen”), aged 52, is an
executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders. She was re-
designated as an executive Director on 6 November 2015 and is mainly
responsible for overseeing corporate policies and human resources of the
Group. She is a director of Power Truth, SE Technology, SE Engineering,
SE R&D, SE Shenzhen and SE Macau. In addition, she is also a director
and a shareholder holding 15% of the entire issued shares of Delighting
View.

Ms. Pauline Yuen has over 28 years of experience in accounting, during
which she has also obtained over 14 years of experience in finance and
management. She obtained a bachelor of science degree in business
administration and accounting from the California State University in the
United States in August 1992. She worked in Wing On Department Stores
(Hong Kong) Limited from November 1992 to April 1994, with her last
position being assistant accountant. She then worked in China Online
(Bermuda) Limited, from April 1994 to September 1999, with her last
position being senior accountant. She was the accounting manager of
Tricom CyberWorld Holdings Limited from September 1999 to December
2000. From September 2001 to January 2006, she worked in Hing Wah
Lung QOil & Rice Limited with her last positing being the accounting and
administration manager. She was employed by Pacific Century Matrix (HK)
Limited from February 2006 to May 2007 with her last position being
manager, finance and administration and was mainly responsible for
management of treasury function and finance and accounting operations.

Ms. Pauline Yuen joined the Group in May 2007 as manager in finance
and administration department and was subsequently transferred to
senior manager in human resources and administration in May 2015. She
was responsible for overseeing human resources activities.

Ms. Pauline Yuen is the sister of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders) and the sister-in-law of Mr.
Joseph Yam (the non-executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member
of the senior management).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEERE

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle (“Ms. Danielle Sun”), aged 58, was
appointed as an executive Director on 6 November 2015. Ms. Sun is
mainly responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing functions of the
Group. She is also a director of Power Truth.

Ms. Danielle Sun has over 20 years of treasury experience in catering
industry. From August 2000 to June 2007 (the date of deregistration), she
was a director of Boss Development Limited, a company engaged in
catering business, and was responsible for cash and transaction
management. From May 2004 to December 2015 (the date of
deregistration), Ms. Danielle Sun was the director of Hung Kee Enterprise
Limited and was responsible for managing its property portfolio and
assisting the board in making property investment decisions. She has
also been the treasurer of Wonderland Palace Restaurant on part time
basis since August 2011 and has been responsible for cash and
transaction management. From April 2004 to January 2011, Ms. Danielle
Sun was employed as the treasurer of Zi Xing Xuan (52 %f), a Chinese
restaurant, and was responsible for cash and transaction management.

Since joining the Group, Ms. Danielle Sun has been in charge of the
overall sales and marketing of the Group by leading the sales department
to formulate and execute the Group’s sales and marketing strategies. She
is also personally responsible for the sales to the catering sector.

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (“Mr. Mui”), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2018 and re-
designated as an executive Director on 2 March 2020. Mr. Mui is mainly
responsible for providing market and industry knowledge in assisting
strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Mui has over 34 years of experience in information technology and
telecommunication industry. He first joined COL Limited as an analyst
programmer from July 1986 to January 1990. From February 1990 to
June 1992, Mr. Mui worked as a consultant in Logica Limited.
Subsequently, he served as a senior consultant in Hutchison Paging
Limited from October 1992 to March 1994 and was mainly responsible
for liaising with business partners in application specification. He then
worked in Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited from April
1994 to October 1997 as the information technology manager for the
fixed network operation and was mainly responsible for leading the fixed
network IT project team for product evaluation, development and
implementation. Mr. Mui was then employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
from August 1998 to December 1999 as a supervising consultant. He
later worked as the assistant vice-president in business development in
PCCW Limited from January 2000 to July 2011. From July 2011 to
January 2017, Mr. Mui was the head of Greater China business
development in Tiaxa International Company Limited.
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EENGREEERBE

Mr. Mui obtained a diploma in business computer studies from the
Faculty of Business in Lingnan College Hong Kong in November 1986.
He subsequently obtained a master of economics degree in business
administration from Zhongshan University in the PRC in January 1998 and
further obtained a bachelor of computing degree from the University of
South Australia in September 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Yam”), aged 66, was
appointed as an executive Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He is mainly
responsible for providing market and industry knowledge in assisting
strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Joseph Yam dedicated his career to the Hong Kong Police Force for
over 32 years. He began as a probationary inspector in 1977, and was
subsequently promoted to senior inspector in 1987 and to chief inspector
in 1990. In 2004, he was further promoted to superintendent, the rank he
held until his retirement in December 2009. Mr. Joseph Yam was
employed by Hong Yip Service Company Ltd., a subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Ltd., as head of security and was responsible for the
overall management, business development, profitability and operations
of its security department, since June 2010. From November 2016 to
May 2020, Mr. Joseph Yam has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Kingland Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Sing on Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1751), a company providing concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau.

Mr. Joseph Yam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Controlling Shareholders), Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Controlling Shareholders).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Billy (“Mr. Chung”), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2018. He is
responsible for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in chartered accountancy
studies from The University of Waterloo, Canada in June 1999. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from the University
of Toronto, Canada in June 2004. Mr. Chung also obtained a diploma in
investigative and forensic accounting from the University of Toronto
Mississauga in 2013 and completed a business analytics certificate
programme, which is an online distance learning course, from the
Northwestern University, the United States, in August 2016.

Mr. Chung has over 15 years of management experience. Mr. Chung
worked as an assistant manager in H.C. Watt & Company Limited in
Hong Kong from August 2005 to July 2006 and was mainly responsible
for assisting in the initial public offering auditing. In June 2007, Mr. Chung
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Culturecom
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0343), and was subsequently re-designated as an
executive director in November 2007. He resigned from Culturecom
Holdings Limited in September 2016. From August 2013 to January
2017, Mr. Chung was the senior advisor of WTM Company Limited, a
software development company in Hong Kong, and was responsible for
advising on business strategies and development. Since November 2016,
Mr. Chung has been the general manager of GoAnimate Hong Kong
Limited and is responsible for its business development activities in the
Asia-Pacific region.

Mr. Chung was admitted as an accredited chartered accountant under
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada in November
2001 and re-designated as a chartered professional accountant in
November 2012. He was also admitted as a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June 2010. Mr. Chung
was further granted as the certified fraud examiner by the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners, the United States, in May 2016. He was also
certified by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
United States, to be certified in financial forensics (CFF) in August 2016.
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Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan (“Mr. Hui”), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2018. He is
responsible for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Hui obtained a bachelor of business degree in banking and finance
from Monash University, Australia in April 2003 and further obtained two
master’s degrees in applied finance and practicing accounting from
Monash University, Australia in November 2004 and November 2007
respectively. He was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in July
2009.

Mr. Hui has over 14 years of experience in corporate finance, financial
management and accounting. He worked in audit field for over five years.
He joined Grant Thornton, an international audit firm, from November
2006 to May 2010 and was responsible for professional engagements
including but not limited to annual audits, interim reviews, initial public
offerings and very substantial acquisition transactions. From July 2010 to
December 2013, he joined a corporate consultancy company as a
consultant to provide professional services including but not limited to
preparing statutory documents and ensuring the documents comply with
the HKFRSs. Mr. Hui was employed by Zhongda International Holdings
Limited as an assistant financial controller from July 2010 to July 2017
and was mainly responsible for preparing group consolidation financial
statements, announcements and circulars and also participating in
financial matters of various projects. The listing of shares of Zhongda
International Holdings Limited on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
was cancelled on 8 March 2019. Mr. Hui has been an independent non-
executive director of Upbest Group Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0335), a company principally
engaged in provision of financial services, since July 2012. From August
2017 to January 2019, Mr. Hui was employed as the company secretary
of Cocoon Holdings Limited (formerly known as Huge China Holdings
Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 0428). From March 2018 to June 2018, Mr. Hui was a non-
executive director of Cocoon Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui has been an
independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0907), since March 2020.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEERE

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard (“Mr. Poon”), aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Poon has over 27 years of experience in the accounting, auditing,
internal auditing and corporate finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. Since
March 2001, he has been the sole practitioner of Richard Poon & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Poon has also been serving as the
managing director of Richard Poon & Partners (C.P.A.) Limited since
August 2013.

Mr. Poon was conferred his Master of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia in April 1999. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as a practising
certified public accountant and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Ka Man, Jazzy (“Ms. Jazzy Wong”), aged 42, is the senior
manager of SE Engineering and is responsible for assisting Ms. Danielle
Sun in conducting the Group’s sales and marketing. She is also a director
of SE Shenzhen. Ms. Jazzy Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
computing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2004. Prior to joining the Group, she worked at South China Media
Limited as web developer in the online department from July 2000 to
September 2000. She joined SE Engineering in October 2000.

Ms. Jazzy Wong is the spouse of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Controlling Shareholders), and the sister-in-law of Ms.
Pauline Yuen (one of the executive Directors and Controlling
Shareholders) and Mr. Joseph Yam (the non-executive Director).
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EENGREEERBE

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (“Mr. Chou”), aged 39, is the company secretary and
financial controller of the Group, and is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting, financial planning, financial control and
company secretarial matters. He first joined as the company secretary of
SE Technology in September 2015 and was subsequently promoted as
the company secretary and financial controller in November 2016. He
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) in November 2015.

Mr. Chou has over 17 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chou worked in an accounting firm from
September 2003 to January 2006, with his last position being semi-senior
auditor. He then joined PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to
December 2010. From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked
as the head of corporate services of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1803) (formerly known as ASR Logistics Holdings
Limited). Since April 2013, Mr. Chou has been working as the financial
controller and company secretary of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM, stock code: 8147) (“MP Group”). Mr.
Chou resigned as the financial controller and the company secretary of
MP Group in September 2014 and March 2017 respectively. Mr. Chou
also served as the chief financial officer of HF Financial Group Limited and
subsequently transferred to HF Management (China) Limited from January
2015 to July 2016. Mr. Chou has been the director of Archon Prime
Strategic (Group) Limited. Mr. Chou has been an executive director and
the authorised representative of Xinming China Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
2699) on 5 February 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive director
on 1 May 2020.

Mr. Chou obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chou was
admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant in November 2011. He was also admitted as a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 2010
and subsequently a fellow member in November 2015.
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BACKGROUND

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempt
company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands on 16 October
2015.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in sales of biometrics identification devices and
security products and provision of application software and repair
and maintenance services during the year ended 31 March 2021
which is same as those of last year. The Company is listed on GEM
of Stock Exchange on 14 February 2018 (stock code: 8379).

This Report covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject
areas, namely, environmental and social aspect of the business
operations in Hong Kong office for the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021 (the “Year” or “2021”), unless otherwise stated.

FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, with
an aim to establish a sound environmental, social and governance
structure.

This report comprises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) areas, which sets out the Company and its major
subsidiaries’ policies and practices in respect of three
environmental aspects and eight social aspects in accordance with
ESG Guide for the Year. This report is designed to allow the
Company’s stakeholders, such as Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers, employees, creditors, regulators and the
general public to have comprehensive understanding of the long-
term sustainability of the Group. The Group seeks to balance the
views and interests of these stakeholders through constructive
conversation with a view to setting the course for long term
prosperity. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk
management and internal control systems are in place and operate
effectively.
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The table underneath shows aspects on the ESG Guide to be TRIT(ESGHREHESNDFFEFHHER - N
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to REEREAEEN S BEXRNESGHEA °
the Group.
ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide Material ESG issues to the Group
(ESG #®E1E5| )P FIRESG EMH HAEBMEBEANWESGEE
(A)  Environmental
A IRE
A1 Emissions Energy consumption
Al HERW) B8
A2  Use of Resources Use of energy and paper
A2 EREA BEIR ARV A

A3  Environment and Natural Resources
A3  RIERARAER

(B)  Social
B) #HE
B1 Employment Labour Practices
B1 f{Ef® BIER
B2 Health and Safety Workplace Health and Safety
B2 fEEEZE TS ERE L 2
B3  Development and Training Employee Development and Training
B3 EEKIE 8 T E# R &g
B4  Labour Standards Anti-child and Forced Labour
B4 STI%A| [ E T K& hlss T
B5 Supply Chain Management Supply Chain Management
Bs fHEEETE HEEER
B6  Product Responsibility Product Responsibility
B6 EmEfE EmBE
B7  Anti-corruption Anti-corruption, Fraud Prevention and Anti-money Laundering
B7 Kk&ES RES - REFF R
B8 Community Investment Community Programs, Employee Volunteering and Donation
B iEEE G  BTEREE RBH
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group.
The Group has proactively looked for and implemented new
technology at various stages of its business in order to minimise its
impact on the environment. The Group’s products are designed to
be safe and environmental friendly for customer use, meaning
recyclable and safe to dispose materials are specified in its designs,
and clean production processes are adopted in its business
process. Moreover, unnecessary packaging that would harm
environment is not introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to reduce negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental friendly methods of operation. Given the nature of
the Group’s business, electricity was the most significant resources
consumed in Hong Kong, Macau and Shenzhen, the PRC during
the Year.

Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in
reducing carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source,
enhance its waste disposal management and set targets on
environmental performance. To minimise the environmental impacts
concerning the activities, products and services, the Group will:

° comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental
aspects, and to which the Group subscribes;

o identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

o prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the
consumption of resources from all daily operations and
actively promote recycle, reuse and replacement; and

° educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in
an environmentally responsible manner.
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The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations which have
significant impact:

a. the Law of the PRC on Import and Export Commodity
Inspection;

b. the Guangdong Safety Technology and Prevention
Regulation;

Gk the Product Quality Law of the PRC;

ol the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

e. the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution;

1i- the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes;

g. the Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection; and

h. the Anti-terrorism Law of the People’s Republic of China and
Guangdong Safety Technology and Prevention Regulation.

AEBBNREEBEEETUTAAEAY
BHNRR PRS-

a. (PEARANMBEAERERE)

b. (EREZERMPIBERGN)
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A1.1 Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption Al.1 REMRELEFENBERE R
During the Year, the key environmental impacts brought by RER REBZERAERNEZIRE
the Group’s operations were energy and paper HERBERMBRER - RERIBIBIRE -
consumptions. To achieve environmental protection, the AEESBEIEINERAEFHREAS T
Group encourages employees to increase the use of REEHEE  UROEEEAREER
e-statement or scanning instead of traditional photocopying BN REEIEEAERE  BHMA
to reduce the use of paper and greenhouse gas emissions; EHGERPFN R (R R ZEH) ©

and to switch-off all computers and office equipment (such
as lighting and air-conditioner) at the end of each working

day.

(@  Since the Group did not have town fuel and town gas (@)  EIPAZRER[ERN G A 0 ME AE TRR
consumption during the Year, no relevant emission KT RS - W AR B U B
data is available. & e

(o)  The Company had certain motor vehicles during the () RFEA - ARREEETAE - ER
Year. The emission data applied to the Group’s motor RASETEHEREBREIINT -

vehicles are set out below:

Key Performance Index (“KPI”)
BRENER (BEEERSE])

% increase/

2021 2020 Unit (decrease)

#m, CRa)

2021 % 2020 By ZBEDL %

NOx 92 81 Grammes 13%
Aew 7

SOx 174 155 Grammes 13%
ey 7

PM 7 6 Grammes 13%
Al A EE R ) 7

Total 273 242 Grammes 13%
By 7

J
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A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission

Al1.2 BRERBEHR

KPI
BREANER
% increase/
2021 2020 Unit (decrease)
#hn, CR2)
2021 % 2020 £ By ZEDHE%
Scope 1
&= 1
Direct emission 31,941 28,324 Kg 13%
BB Ny
Scope 2
#E2
Indirect emission 58,534 47,007 Kg 25%
i B B NI
Scope 3
#E3
Other indirect emission S 3,108 Kg -
H A I HE AR N
Total 90,475 78,349 Kg 15%
R NI

During the Year, 90,475 kg (2020: 78,349 kg) of greenhouse
gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide)
were emitted due to the Group’s operation.

The total gross floor area coverage for the Group during the
Year was 2,072 m? (2020: 1,270 m?). The annual emission
intensity was 43.7 Kg CO,e/m? (2020: 61.7 Kg CO,e/m?).

RER ARNEELEMELNEERE
(FZ2A-Stk FREEELCER) A
90,475 A fT (2020 4F : 78,349 AT ) °

RER » AEBBELEMEH2,072FF K
(20204F : 1,270 F752K) - FHHREE RS

B KATRAF &1L
FEFK61.T AT AL

i & & (2020 4 :

Wl =
KEE) °
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HEREGRE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group during the Year. In
addition, no significant fine or non-monetary sanction for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been
reported in the Year.

A1.3 & A1.4 Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation.
However, there were non-hazardous waste which the
management of the Group believe to be insignificant arose
from the use of electricity during the Group’s operation.

A1.5 & A1.6 Handling of Hazardous and Non-hazardous

A2

Waste

Since the Group generates no hazardous waste and
insignificant non-hazardous waste, there is no mitigation plan
for handling non-hazardous waste.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection. In particular, a number of initiatives designed to
conserve resources were introduced to promote employee
awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

Energy conservation will not be effective without the support
of employees. The Group has been encouraging employees
to establish energy-saving habits at office, such as switching
off lights and electronic appliances before leaving office, as
well as maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C. To further
conserve electricity, the Group has leased energy-efficient
high-speed printers for its daily operation. The Management
Group believed that the water consumption and usage of
packing material is insignificant.
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A3

During the Year, the energy consumptions of the Group by RER - AEBEMBREREFEERIZER
type in total are showed as below: glomT :
KPI
BRENER

% increase/

2021 2020 Unit (decrease)

B CR)

2021 % 2020 By ZEDHE %

Electricity consumed 108,397 87,050 kWh 25%
BE T

Qil consumed 114,835 122,200 kWh (6%)
RS TR

Total energy consumed 223,232 209,250 kWh 7%
AR IREREE T ELBF

Total floor area of facilities 2,072 1,270 m? 63%
X AR IS AR 5K

Electricity consumed per square metre 108 165 kWh/m? (35%)
HYHRAEE FRE,F Ik

Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group’s activities did not have any direct significant
impact on the environment and natural resources beyond the
resource consumption and emissions issues discussed
above. The Group will continue to explore ways of integrating

environmental considerations into its business decisions and
the services it provides, including promoting and supporting

ways to combat climate change.

There was no non-compliance case with any environmental

laws and regulations for the Year.

A3 REHARER

B bt BRI R RE SN REE R
EPARELNENERLECAEENE

TR AEBBEBRSRTE  BRE
AEMAXBRELRHERORE - 24 R

#EREBESRIEE (L

BT -

RER - WEEREFRFER IR -
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B. SOCIAL
Being a responsible business and employer, the Group is
committed to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate
social responsibilities. The Group focuses on the welfare of its staff,
environment and community as well as its business partners.

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing
human capital, provides competitive remuneration and
welfare packages. Promotion opportunities and salary
adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as
annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave and medical coverage in accordance with local
regulations.

The Group emphasises on equal opportunities for all
personnel in respect of hiring, pay rates, training and
development, promotion and other terms of employment.
The Group is committed to providing a work environment
which is free from any form of discrimination on the basis of
ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with
reference to the individual performance, working experience
and prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition to basic
salaries and mandatory provident fund for the Group’s Hong
Kong employees, fringe benefits including flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner
are available.

The Group complies with relevant ordinances and statutory
requirements, such as the Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) of Hong Kong. During the Year,
the Group has had no non-compliance with any laws and
regulations on employment.
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The employee handbook of the Group’s PRC subsidiary had
been developed in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC and has been distributed to all employees since they
joined. The remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. The remuneration generally includes salaries and
allowances.

During the Year, the Group’s PRC subsidiary had subscribed
to those basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance,
maternity insurance as prescribed by the Social Insurance
Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund schemes as
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of
Housing Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits
are made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general
employees are generally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week.
Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with
reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with the following laws and
regulations which have significant impact:

a. Employees’” Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

b. Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

3 Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

d. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

e. Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Chapter
588 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

AEETENBARNE TFMARECT
EARAMBLEEZOHE - REIMAR
A A HOR 2 o HFMBCRRIRERER TH
B BREKRKRETE - FH-—KRER
Fre JORRh -
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ENEABEZRR  EABERERR  KF
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RBEHIE mMMEBRBBARNNMENE
WERAHREER - —REBITHIERIIE
FEAE RETRS/NE - §E4A /R T
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HIHTE BB ©
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BERRENERIER

a (EEHERKRF)(FBEMF282

Ek
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c. (ZRETEFEM)(EFEED %608
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f. Regulatory Regime to which SE Macau is subject in
relation to Labour Matters in Macau;

g. the Labour Law of the PRC;

h. the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, the Provisional
Regulations on Collection and Payment of Social
Insurance Premium; and

i. The Regulations on Management of Housing Provident
Fund.

Staff Composition

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed a total of 71
(2020: 70) staff, including operational office, sales and
marketing, and back office division. All staff members are
allocated in Hong Kong and the PRC.

ERRPISRFIB TEBTARNE
EHIE

9. (hEARAMBELHE)

h.  (REARRNBLEHARE) R
SR EBREEITIRDD &
(EERABETERIEH) -

AB#EX

2021 FE3A31 B AEELEATIEE
T (20204 : 704) * BIEEBRAE -
E MBITHBREERAE - TETE
ABHDREEBARFE o

(a)  Employee’ s Employment Type and Gender Distribution @) IRIEFHEEE S EES LR
2021 2020
2021 F 2020

Employment type Male Female Male Female
ERER B 7 S gl
Part-time staff 0% 0% 0% 0%
FBET

Full-time staff 79% 21% 77% 23%
PBET

Total 79% 21% 7% 23%
By
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(b)

(©

Employee’ s Age and Gender Distribution (b) IEFERESEESEFS
2021 2020

2021 F 20204
Age Group Male Female Male Female
F AR Rl B i ] oy
0-15 0% 0% 0% 0%
0mx-155%
16-18 0% 0% 0% 0%
16 5% —18 5%
19-30 23% 4% 30% 4%
195%-30 7%
31-45 32% 10% 27% 10%
31545 5%
46-60 21% 7% 17% 9%
46 5% —60 5%
=61/>61 3% 0% 3% 0%
61 B A =
Total 79% 21% 77% 23%
By
Employee’ s Geographical and Gender Distribution © xR E 5 891E S 1455

2021 2020

2021 F 20204F
By Location Male Female Male Female
ih & B g Bt 2z
Hong Kong 58% 13% 56% 14%
BB
The PRC 21% 8% 21% 9%
&
Total 79% 21% 7% 23%
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Geographical

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and
caring environment to employees to raise their sense of
belonging and work efficiency in the Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare of
the Group during the Year. In addition, no non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant
fines or sanctions had been reported during the Year.

Health and Safety

The management of the Group recognises that the
operational efficiency of an enterprise and the maintenance
of a healthy and safety working environment for all employees
are closely related. The Group continues to maintain a
healthy and safety working environment for its employees so
as to attract and retain talented employees which is in line
with established internal guidelines and systems of the
Group.

The Group provides its employee with flexible rest leave
arrangement, medical and hospital scheme. The Group
understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is
very important. A set of clear guideline of work arrangement
under typhoon and rainstorm warning had been formulated
by the Group for its employees to follow.
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B3

Occupational Health and Safety Data B i A
The information of work accidence are set out below: THEERHERNTRAR :
2021 2020

2021 £ 20204
Health and Safety Male Female Male Female
REHEZE B i 51 gl
Number of work-related fatalities 0% 0% 0% 0%
TERR ML T B A S
Lost days due to work injury 0% 0% 0% 0%

RAITEEETIERE

During the Year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
laws and regulations on occupational health and safety.

Development and Training

Staff development forms an important aspect of the Group’s
human resources policy. The Group places a strong
emphasis on providing training to its employees to retain
appropriate and suitable personnel for its long-term
development.

The Group has committed to providing on-the-job education
and training to its employees in order to enhance their
knowledge and skills. All employees are encouraged to
enhance their skills and knowledge at every opportunity in
order to perform their current job more efficiently and
effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities
which may arise. During the Year, regular training courses
were provided to the employees included but not limited to
orientation training, technical training and quality training.

Performance evaluations are initiated annually. In order to
recognise the value in the skill and experience of the Group’s
employees, the Group has adopted a policy that any
promotions will be considered internally first before hiring any
outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to select the most
suitable candidate for appointment to a higher rank based on
merit, rather than on the seniority of the candidates.

B3
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REEVERRRD -
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Labour Standards

The Group is fully awarded that child labour and forced
labour violate fundamental human rights, International Labour
Conventions and Recommendations and poses a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. Therefore, the
Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations.
The Group prohibits the hiring of child labour by reviewing the
actual age of the interviewee during the recruitment process,
including the examination of identity documents and detailed
records. The Group only carries out the requirements of
standard labour contract and does not adopt any means to
unfairly restrict the employment relationship between
employee and the enterprise by, for example, withholding a
deposit or identity documents.

For entry registration, all employees must present to the
Group valid documents as follows: (i) identity card and
vocational qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii)
medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other
relevant information and documents. The above procedures
ensure no child labour will be employed.

Being people-oriented, the Group has hosted various social
events and activities such as company trips and parties for
its employees with the aim of promoting work-life balance.

During the Year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
child labour and forced labour laws.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and
regulations that govern its business. The Group strives to
adhere to international best practices and conduct fair and
unbiased procurement processes when dealing with
suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation
and engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and
services to ensure business is conducted with legally,
financially and technically-sound entities. In addition, approval
procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of
management.
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During the selection process of suppliers, the Group takes
into account such as its reputation, quality of services and
products, past performance and green elements.

EHREMRZERED  AEENEREX
BIEERE RBELEREER BEFXAE
ARRRAZE ©

The geographical distribution of suppliers is set out below: R EE DR EEEIN TR
By Location 2021
R EE D 2021
Hong Kong 34%
B
The PRC 54%
H
Other countries 12%
H AR
Total 100%
e

B6 Product Responsibility B6 EmEE

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer
satisfaction in terms of the products and services. Strenuous
efforts are made to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to product health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. The Group requires its
employees to comply with applicable governmental and
regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

Quality Control and Product Warranty

Instruction guidelines regarding product quality inspection,
return and repair of defective products have been set to
further ensure that the quality of our products are up to
standard and customers who have received verified defective
products can get their replacement. Upon receiving a
defective unit of a product, the unit is subject to different
procedures depending on the situation, which will be
accepted for exchange or repair if the customer can provide
valid purchase and warranty documents. The customer
service team of the Group is responsible for monitoring and
handling customer complaints and a set of procedures have
been formulated so that complaints can be categorised and
solved by the designated staff timely.
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Data Privacy Protection

The Group emphasises the importance of protecting and
safe-guarding its customers’ privacy, especially for money
lenders’ information. Thereby, the Group would be cautious
upon the collection, procession and usage of customers’
personal data in order to comply with the provisions of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

During the Year, the Group did not have any products
subject to recall and did not receive any compliant from its
customers in relation to either the quality of its services or
products. Neither did the Group record any non-compliance
cases regarding violations of relevant laws and regulations on
product responsibility and data privacy.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited.
The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards of
conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in
order to promote the integrity environment in the workplace.

The management believes that the integrity of business is the
foundation of corporate social responsibility, as well as a
fundamental element for a business’s competitive advantage
and sustainability. The Group is committed to the highest
possible standards of openness, probity and accountability.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest,
unless with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees
are prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-
workers, customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless
with approval the Board, senior management members are
also prohibited from engaging in any activities that involve a
potential conflict of interest with the Group or may do harm
to the Group’s overall interests. Breaches are subject to
disciplinary actions, including termination of employment
contracts where necessary.
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Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing, including
the basic procedures for customer identification and due
diligence, suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping.
Ongoing staff training has also been carried out to ensure
each of the employees is fully aware of these policies.

In the Year, there was no legal case concerning corruption
brought against the Group or employees.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and to maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in
order to contribute to local development from time to time.

The Group strives to improve its social image and social
responsibility through community investment. All employees
of the Group are encouraged to participate in helping and
supporting the local communities and neighbours with their
own initiatives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial to the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the
interests of Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) as its own code and has complied with the CG Code for
the year ended 31 March 2021, except for the following deviation. The
Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate governance
principles and practices to ensure compliance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Tony Yuen is the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders
of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
June 1999, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Tony Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore the Board considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code and the Required
Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the period from date of the Listing to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three Independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan

Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience,
knowledge and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his
or her duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, one general meeting, five regular

HE2021F3AGNALFE  BRTEREEARER

Board meetings and other Board meetings were held in addition to BE8T—XBREAE AAFRESeeZREMES
circulation of written resolutions. Attendance record of these meetings are €& - @ HELSIIRIT ¢
shown below:
General Audit Remuneration = Nomination
Name of member MEHS Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
L EVN-1 E=g EREES ¥FMEES REZES
Number of total meetings 2Ry 1 4 4 2 2
Number of Meetings BHESEZNY MY
attended/Total
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony BrElfE 5 1/1 4/4 N/ANiE A N/AiE A N/ATNiE A
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline mEL 7+ 1/1 4/4 N/AA3E A 2/2 N/ATNE A
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BRIt 1/1 4/4 N/A3E A N/A 3 A N/ATNE
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen sz 11 4/4 N/A 33 A N/A 3 A N/ARiE A
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph TRRAEE 11 4/4 N/A T A N/ATE F N/ATEA
Independent non-executive BV FHITESE
Directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan OB E 1/1 4/4 4/4 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chung Billy ETEELE 1/1 4/4 4/4 2/2 2/2
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard BEMEE 11 4/4 4/4 2/2 2/2
/4
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THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management of
the Company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s
affair under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should
make decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the
Group’s strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) diversification and extension of activities into new business area;

(iii)

approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  dividend policy;

(v) material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi)

reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;

(vii)

monitoring the performance of the Management; and
(viii)  determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the
Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 18 January
2018. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board
that should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business
and compliance with policies. The composition and diversity policies of
the Board is reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure
that its changes in composition will not result in any undue interference.
The Board members should possess appropriate professionalism,
experience and trustworthiness in performing duties and functions. The
Board would diversify its members according to the Company’s situations
and need. While participating in nomination and recommendation of
director candidates during the year, each member of the Board may
consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the
policy concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including
any quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

In 2021, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and
considered the Board composition and diversity policy is appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the chief executive officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to entering into any significant transactions by the above mentioned
officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

(i) implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the
Board;

(ii) strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i) closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance
with plans and budgets;

(iv)  putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and

(v)  managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors; and
at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in
writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors were independent since their respective date of appointment.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the Directors by the
Company.

Mr. Tony Yuen (the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer and
an executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member of the senior
management) are spouse. Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen (an
executive Director) are siblings. Mr. Tony Yuen and Mr. Joseph Yam (a
non-executive Director) are brothers-in-law. Mr. Joseph Yam is a brother-
in-law of Ms. Jazzy Wong and Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Jazzy Wong and
Ms. Pauline Yuen are sisters-in-law. Save as otherwise disclosed herein,
there is no family or other material relationship among members of the
Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the
businesses and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills, and updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors provided their

HFEEXRRE

EREF(BEBYIIFNTES) EEMEREZRRA
SEEBREHOARET - ARETSREBRE R
HApLEF)| - PASHR I 5 37 28 S5 0O A0 S BB - AL GEM
EHRAREMEREERENSNERAZBESRR
HEHER BRAALNEBESHREERERAER

E)Jiz::
Y/

BZE202163A31AILFE  EFHREZEP RK

training record to the Company in respect of their participations in training ~ ZH{EA LT AR EE 2 B LB S NEIEE (A0 E
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and  #l5 &) MAR RHREENALEE - FEBEWOT -
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are
as follows:
Reading Attending
materials the seminars
relevant to Attending relevant to
directors’ the seminars the skill of the
duties and provided by the Director’s
responsibilities Company position
HEERBER HEEESRHN
BEAMAWEE HEAA RRM e
R e mEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony e v v/ v/
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline (T2 yogn v 4 v
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BEGz+ v/ v/ v
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen 2L Sk v 4 4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Yam Chu Fan, Joseph EBAEE v v v/
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan OSSR v v v
Mr. Chung Billy BEERE v v/ v/
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard EREEE v 4 4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tony Yuen is both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group since June 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Tony
Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for
managing the Board, whereas the role of the chief executive officer is
primarily responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group.
Their respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the chairman include: (i) leading the Board and
ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the
Board and Shareholder’s meetings; (iii) approving the agenda for each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other Directors and the Company Secretary for inclusion
in the agenda; (iv) ensuring all Directors receive all relevant information
prior to each meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings; (v) ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, to actively participate
in all Board and Board committees meetings and promoting a culture of
openness for the Directors to share and voice their concerns on all
matters during each meeting; (vii) ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established and followed; and (viii) taking
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with Shareholders
and to ensure that Shareholders’ view are communicated to the Board as
a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: (i) implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (iii) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team;
(vii) putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems
in place; and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s
day-to-day business.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years and subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall retire
and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Each executive Director, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Director is appointed for an initial term of three years and
renewable for successive terms of one year each commencing from the
day next after the expiry of the then current term, subject to rotation,
removal, vacation, or termination of such office as set out in the Articles
or the disqualification to act as a Director under the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is further required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company.

All existing executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or
fee per annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject
to the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in
terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and are
eligible for share options under the Share Option Scheme.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), all with specific terms of reference clearly
defining the powers and responsibilities of the respective board
committees. All board committees are required by their respective terms
of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings
or recommendations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG Code
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan
and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy, with all
members being independent non-executive Directors in full compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, four Audit Committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 43 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include:

() Relationship with the Company’s auditor
(@ to consider and be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences.
In connection, the Audit Committee shall:

° consider all relationships between the Company and
the external auditor (including non-audit services);

° obtain from the external auditor annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including those for rotation of audit
partners and staff; and

° meet with the external auditor, at least annually, in the
absence of the management, to discuss matters
relating to its audit fee, any issues arising from the
audit and any other matters the external auditor may
wish to raise;
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50

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
external auditor includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. When assessing the
external auditor’s independence or objectivity in relation to
non-audit service, the Audit Committee shall consider:

° whether the skills and experience of the audit firm
make it a suitable supplier of the non-audit services;

° whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that
there is no threat to the objectivity and independence
of the audit because the external auditor provides non-
audit services;

° the nature of the non-audit services, the related fee
levels and fee levels individually and in total relative to
the audit firm; and

° criteria for compensation of the individuals performing
the audit.

The Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying
and making recommendation on any matters where action or
improvement is needed; and

to approve the policies on hiring employees or former
employees of the external auditors and monitoring the
application of these policies and consider whether there has
been or appears to be any impairment of the auditor’s
judgement or independence for the audit.
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(ii)

2k

o

Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

(©

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if
prepare for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine
the scope and extent of the review. The Audit Committee
may refer to relevant statements of auditing standards and
audited guidelines in relation to review of these reports for
guidance. In reviewing these reports before submission to
the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2)  major judgement areas;

(8)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(5)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

regarding point (a) above:

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and Company’s senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company’s auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, and it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditors.

to provide full details of any disagreement by the Audit
Committee with the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company.
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(iii)

52

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures

(@)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and the internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference and those set out in the code provisions as stated
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules from time to time;

to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters, and the Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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0] to act as the key representation body for overseeing the
Group’s relationship with the external auditor;

(k) to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence,
with the audit committee about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company;

() to review the half-year report prepared by the Group’s
corporate guarantee committee on its work and information
relating to the provision of corporate guarantees; and

(m)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Major accomplishments in 2021 comprised the following:

(@  reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a
quarterly, half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

(b)  reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if
any;

(c) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting
function of the Group;

(d)  reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2021 and the letter of representation to be given by
the Board; and

(e)  considered and approved the 2021 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had appointed McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited, as independent consultant, to review
the Group’s internal control systems and recommend actions to improve
our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s

internal control system was effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirement of the CG Code
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the one executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, Mr. Chung Billy and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 43
of this report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i)~ to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(iv)  to determine the policy and make recommendations to the Board

on remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(v)  toassess the performance of executive Directors;

(vi)  to approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts;

(vl to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

54

HE2021F3ANALFE  ESCHERZESH
g - 2T BHIERINEXEMEETEZT RO -

EREESEBHARBEEE2021F3 A3 ALFE
MEEZHISHRE  VESESSHE -

FHEES
ARAEBBELEERTANRENLTNEES -
I SEAEEE - I A REE R T R T%Euﬁéﬁrﬁ °

FHNZE@URH - RRTEFR =B U IFNTES
ZHEZ P BIBnRIe it RBIELL  EEAELENTX
VRS WHETERSTERETE -

HE2021F3ANALFE  FMEESRIT TN

% REHFEBENHENAREF43H -

FHEEanAE LB aE
) HERARFAZEEERAKESAERASN
FINIRR MR - R RRAZIER M EERE IR

F%\JET%?@MIBZ% CREESRLES

(i) FEEEEGMIIEETHIBRmMR RIEE
B ERFBNEE
(i) MESSEAENATESREREEABNT

B8 - WWEBEEMN G  RIRSENEFE
SHE(BRRAIKIBBARENEAENE

18) :

V) BFRTEZENFHEIERRRANEESROE

%
W) ERTEENER

M) BORBATE BRSO

ERAED TR OFH - AR R
AR B B LA R PO LA B 0 R AR It -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Corporate Governance Report

(viii)
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(xii)
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

[E %

s/M\Aﬁtﬁ

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

to form a view in respect of service contracts to be granted by the
Group under Rule 17.90 of the GEM Listing Rules that require
Shareholders’ approval and advise Shareholders (other than
Shareholders who are Directors with a material interests in the
service contracts and their associates) as to whether the terms are
fair and reasonable, advise whether such contracts are in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole and
advise Shareholders how to vote. An independent non-executive
Director who has a material interest in any such contracts shall not
sit on the Remuneration Committee;

to consider the granting of share options to Directors pursuant to
any share option scheme adopted by the Company;

to ensure due compliance with any relevant disclosure requirements
in respect of the remuneration of Directors under the GEM Listing
Rules, the Companies Ordinance and any other statutory
requirements;

to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief executive of the
Company about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

to do any such things to enable to the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles or imposed by
legislation and the GEM Listing Rules; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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Major accomplishments in 2021 comprised the review of matters relating
to the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are in conformity with the requirements of the CG Code and are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan, Mr.
Chung Billy and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, and chaired by Mr. Hui Man
Ho, Ivan.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 43 of this
annual report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(i) to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

(i)  without prejudice to the generality of foregoing:

(@  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board

on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

(e)  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors;

M to adopt nomination procedures, process and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship;
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(@  todo any such things to enable to the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
or imposed by legislation and the GEM Listing Rules;

(i) in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into by
any members of the Group with its Director or proposed Director,
which require the prior approval of the Shareholders at general
meeting, to review and provide recommendations to the
Shareholders (other than Shareholders who are Directors with a
material interest in the relevant service contracts and their
respective associates) as to whether the terms of the service
contracts are fair and reasonable and whether such service
contracts are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole, and to advise Shareholders on how to vote;

(iv)  to review the policy concerning diversity of the Board and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy from time to
time adopted by the Board, and to review the progress on
achieving these objectives; and

(v)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Major accomplishments in 2021 comprised the recommendation of the
re-election of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2021 comprised the followings:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and made appropriate amendments;

(i) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(i) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the

R2021 FER M TR EIHEBIE T FIFIE ¢

() FEIEAEEZOEE
1BET

ABERRESR - WIEHEE

(i) THEZREREBEABNEIRFEEERR

P53

(i) WA ARFETEEER
EE RHYKEE o

SRIMBRREREE

ZEETEN &
H £ 2021443 A 31 EJLEF‘* CHNEREARS (BB)

external auditor McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited and its &3tEIEHKAER AT R EBEK 8 rmAs EigHts
network firm to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as %’fi&#%’fiﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂT :
follows:
Services rendered HK$
R RS BT
Audit services EIZR
— Audit the consolidated financial statements of the — BRAEEHE2021F3A3THILEFE
Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 ZEBMBHRE 550,000

Non-audit services HEZRTE
Non-audit services include (i) tax compliance service; IERIZ RIS BIE () A AR

(ii) risk assessment and internal control review; and (ii) BB A4 R RBP4 HI 2B R 0

(iliy environmental, social and governance reporting. (i) BR3% ~ (B REIAWRE - 100,000

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 were audited by
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditor in respect of the financial statements are set out
in the report of the auditor forming part of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures.
The Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment
of the business objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and Shareholders’ interests. During the year under review, McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and has provided written reports to
the Audit Committee.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of
defence, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction. The
management, as the second line of defence, defines rule sets and
models, provide technical support, develops new system and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures risks are within acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line of defence,
McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited assists the Audit Committee
to review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management
of risks associated with its business activities through ongoing
assessment of a risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of
each identified risk. The Group has implemented an effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound management system and periodic review of the
Group’s performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Group regards periodic review of internal control system as an
important part of the Board’s oversight function. The Group has not set
up an internal audit function, however, the Group has engaged an
external consultant, McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited, to
conduct review on the internal control system of the Group. The review
shall be conducted once every year. During the year ended 31 March
2021, a review has been conducted and the Directors considered the
internal control system of the Group to be effective and adequate.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2021, covering the material
financial, operational and compliance controls, which are considered
effective and adequate.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions on an annual basis.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view that in
light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, as
opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal audit
department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company
or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The executive Directors have responsibility for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the Company
under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. The Company has appropriate internal control and
reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside information.
Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be conducted
by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Chou Chiu Ho.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Chou Chiu
Ho confirming that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2021. The Company is of the
view that Mr. Chou has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting.

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable legislation
and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”)
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles;
and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
itself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to ir@primeintelligence.com.hk, Shareholders
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the headquarters and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132, Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2991
1110, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy, a summary of which is
disclosed below.

Any amount of dividends of the Company will be at the discretion of the
Directors and will depend on, among other things, the Company’s trading
results, cash flows and financial condition as well as operating and capital
requirements. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of
dividends will be subject to the Company’s constitutional documents and
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, including the approval of Shareholders.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
by means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
Since the date of Listing up to date of this annual report, there was no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators and
prospects of the Group’s business are provided in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on page 5 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 14 of the annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Director’s report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment reporting are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 160.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity” and note 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$52.1 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of the annual report.
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PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Hui
Man Ho, Ivan and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, shall retire from office as
Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr.
Chung Billy, Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan and Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard have
agreed to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Danielle Sun has entered
into a service agreement with our Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from the date of Listing and such service agreements
have been renewed for another year. Mr. Mui Pak Kuen has entered into
a service agreement with our Company for an initial term of three years
with effect from the 2 March 2020. All of the said service agreements will
be renewable from time to time thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ prior notice in writing.

The non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the date of
Listing. The said letter of appointment has been renewed for another year
and will be renewable from time to time thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of Mr. Chung Billy and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan has entered into a
letter of appointment for an initial term of three years with effect from the
date of Listing and such letters of appointment have been renewed for
another year. Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard has entered into a letter of
appointment for an initial term of three years with effect from 2 March
2020. All of the said letters of appointment will be renewable from time to
time thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on page 15 to 22 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long

positions

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Number Percentage of the

of Shares Company’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) share capital

BRHHE EADTE BT

HE SO RERME (KizE1) BRA 2B

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (“Mr. Tony Yuen”) Interest of controlled corporation 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%

(notes 2 and 3)

BBl 5 4 ([Br e 1) (Afat2 % 3) RS EEER

Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline Interest of controlled corporation 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%

(“Ms. Pauline Yuen”) (notes 2 and 3)

et ([t ) (fa2k3)

Notes:

il
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Rt EEER

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shareholder’s interest in the
share capital of the Company.

Delighting View directly holds 366,000,000 Shares. As Delighting View is
beneficially owned as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen respectively and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are parties
acting in concert, each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen is deemed
to be interested in all Shares held by Delighting View under the SFO.

On 25 February 2021, Delighting View (as vendor) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”, as amended by a supplemental agreement
dated 11 June 2021) with Kailong Asia Limited (as purchaser) (“Kailong”),
which is an independent third party, pursuant to which Delighting View
conditionally agreed to sell, and Kailong conditionally agreed to purchase,
Shares carrying 20.0% of the voting rights of the entire issued Shares,
equivalent to 160,000,000 Shares as at the date of the SPA (the
“Transaction”). The Transaction had not yet been completed as at the date
of this report and is expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2021,
subject to the fulfilment or waiver (as the case may be) of the conditions
precedent set out in the SPA. Upon completion of the Transaction, the
number of Shares beneficially owned by Delighting View will reduce to
206,000,000 Shares, representing 25.75% of the entire issued Shares.

et -

BXFH L] RRBERRARBRANGFR

Delighting View & #& #§ % 366,000,000 % A& 5 o &8 %
Delighting View 2 Bll # B 55 A4 R B 22 & 25 % 5 85% &
15% + Bt £ Rtz T A —BTEAL - BUIRIEES
R BRE 16451 B o A e B 22 + 7% B #1248 AT Delighting View
A AaRND P EE# -

#2021 42 258 - Delighting View( {E & & 77 ) @&
Kailong Asia Limited ([#E& &7 |) ([Kailong ) fE/5—%
BUE=AVEEGE((EERE] £HHA2021
Fe6A 11 BMERMHEIER]) - #B Ut - Delighting View &
&4 R B & 1 Kallong B & R BB BN S 2 3B 817
B0 #)20.0% IR Z K IR - KTV B B B A
# 160,000,000 & A7 ([R5 1)  1RIEE B 78§
R - ZR SR AHRE BHIN R TER - TBER# 7 2021
F6A30BK AR - WA E SRR TR
HREERIBRERBRAME)E - HAMEE - ZRH T
Bk % + Delighting View # #%F 4 206,000,000 i% i& 1 - 16 &
RARR 2 PR EITRAR 25.75% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 ad 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to be taken
under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein;
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 and 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons, not being Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or
were deemed to have, interests or short position in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

B EXFTIEEN  RARERH  BEARRESELE
ZITBABRESEZHEA(EERGEM ETHRAD R
AN E S E A REERE (FERFESF KBS KRIEXV
) MEMARG - ERDRERET - A EARE
BHRPEIENEXVIBE 7 ReHEAME ANA ) R
RETRIERSAR (BIEREES RAEEAAEBIEX
BESAEWEERRABEANERIAR)  SUREE
# R HIE G558 352 {8 B R 8RR s IR B FTis B 2 M By
BB - SIRIEGEM E B A5 5.46 12 5.67 (578
MEAR R KB FTHELS TR R

FERRREMATREQIDRG REBRSD
B9 1 8 B2 0K

202153 A1 H - BEBEMAE © THAL(WIE
FYUARRAERITEAB) RRG% B ER G B sk
WRARBIREESLEEGIEXVIE2 K35 EME
NBRRNARWENERS AR  HBLHRARA AR
BES L BEIRGIEIB6IKAMTFESCMNERIAR
N EESRHEEEAMFEANRERER T EARRA
BRE RS EIREAEMEERIRANEE 5% KA L

Long positions e
Ordinary Shares of the Company KR E]EBR

Number Percentage of the

of Shares Company’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) share capital

RGHEHE HARATERIT
HE LR SO RERME (KtaE1) REZBD K
Delighting View (notes 2 and 3) Beneficial owner 366,000,000 (L) 45.75%
Delighting View (ffi#2 % 3) EmEA A
Kailong Asia Limited (“Kailong”) (note 4) Beneficial owner 190,000,000 (L) 23.75%
Kailong Asia Limited ([ Kailong |) (#fz£ 4) EmlB A
Soleil Capital Limited (“Soleil”) (note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 190,000,000 (L) 23.75%
Soleil Capital Limited ([ Soleil ) (Ff#t4) TG EEER
Teo Kian Huat (“Mr. Teo”) (note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 190,000,000 (L) 23.75%
SR ([REED (KiE4) RESEAEER

J
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shareholder’s interest in the
share capital of the Company.

2, As Delighting View is beneficially owned as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony
Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen are parties acting in concert, each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Delighting View under
the SFO.

3. On 25 February 2021, Delighting View (as vendor) entered into the SPA (as
amended by a supplemental agreement dated 11 June 2021) with Kailong
(as purchaser), which is an independent third party, pursuant to which
Delighting View conditionally agreed to sell, and Kailong conditionally agreed
to purchase, Shares carrying 20.0% of the voting rights of the entire issued
Shares, equivalent to 160,000,000 Shares as at the date of the SPA (the
“Transaction”). The Transaction had not yet been completed as at the date
of this report and is expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2021,
subject to the fulfilment or waiver (as the case may be) of the conditions
precedent set out in the SPA. Upon completion of the Transaction, the
number of Shares beneficially owned by Delighting View will reduce to
206,000,000 Shares, representing 25.75% of the entire issued Shares.

4. As at the date of this report, Kailong directly holds 30,000,000 Shares. Upon
Completion of the Transaction which is expected to take place on or before
30 June 2021, Kailong will directly hold 190,000,000 Shares. As Kailong is
beneficially owned entirely by Soleil, which is in turn ultimately owned entirely
by Mr. Teo, Soleil and Mr. Teo are both deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by Kailong under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors are
not aware of any other person, other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or options in respect
of such share capital.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations” and
“Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, and save for the
reorganisation and the capitalisation issue as explained in the Prospectus,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries or its parent company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors and chief executives (including their respective
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any of its associated corporation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
by the then Shareholders on 18 January 2018 for the primary purpose is
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include any employees, any executives, non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme
was adopted, after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain
in full force and effect and share options which are granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of which were
summarised in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus. No share option has been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares or (i)
requires the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

EEHEHN
FN - ARARBERERRENEALI EBNEER
TRI RIS T B A H -

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FERFRHERS
Sales Purchases
HE s
The largest customer BAEP 10.1% N/A 3 A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREF#EET 32.4% N/A i A
The largest supplier BAULRER N/A i A 53.1%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EE N/A 3 3 73.4%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, to the best of knowledge of the
Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on the businesses and operations of the Group.

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 17.22 TO 17.24 OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no circumstances which would give
rise to a disclosure obligation under Rules 17.22 to 17.24 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND KEY RELATIONSHIP
WITH EMPLOYEES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and key relationship
with employees is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” from pages 23 to 40 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the
requirement of Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 June 2018, SE Engineering, being an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (as tenant)
with Global Technology Corporation Limited (as landlord) (“Global
Technology”). Global Technology was owned as to approximately
28.0%, 28.0%, 5.0% and 9.0% by Mr. Yuen Jackson Kwok Leung (“Mr.
Jackson Yuen”), Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Ms. Danielle Sun
respectively. Mr. Jackson Yuen is the elder brother of Ms. Pauline Yuen
and Mr. Tony Yuen who are Controlling Shareholders and executive
Directors. Since Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Mr. Jackson Yuen
are “family members” as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
and they together owned over 50% of the total issued share capital of
Global Technology, Global Technology is an associate of Mr. Tony Yuen
and Ms. Pauline Yuen pursuant to Rule 20.10(2)(b) of the GEM Listing
Rules. Therefore, the entering into the said tenancy agreement by SE
Engineering (as tenant) with Global Technology (as landlord) constitutes a
connected transaction.

On 6 January 2021, SE Engineering, being an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (as tenant)
with Brilliant Capital Resources Limited (as landlord) (“Brilliant Capital”).
Brilliant Capital was owned as to approximately 42.5%, 42.5% and 15.0%
by Mr. Jackson Yuen, Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively.
Since Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Mr. Jackson Yuen are “family
members” as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and they
together owned over 50% of the total issued share capital of Brilliant
Capital, Brilliant Capital is an associate of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen pursuant to Rule 20.10(2)(b) of the GEM Listing Rules. Therefore,
the entering into a tenancy agreement by SE Engineering (as tenant) with
Brilliant Capital (as landlord) constitutes a connected transaction.

Details of the above tenancy agreement of the Group are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 March 2021 had any interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

BBLR5
BRASEBBETRSNHBEN G M BERKRME
38 °

BERS

MR2018F6 A20H + AAAHELZEMBARZMT
BRUEAHEP) BEZFEEFRAR([HE]) (fEA%EX)
FINHERE SERRERAE(RERELEE] Bt
Sk RFELZLDHHEE428.0% - 28.0%
5.0% K% 9.0% % - AR EE AR LT REER D
£ T RUAEAERBREDITES - ARE
S ozt RER A AEBRGEM ERRFE20F AT
AENREKRKE | MESARBEHEFTL2BEHITR
AR 50% - RIEGEM LR BIZE 20.102)0) 4 « &
AnEERZTHBEA - At EMIR(EARA
BesE(EAEE )BT LU ER ABKBERS -

Ro021F1A6H  ARAEE2EMNB AR EMIRE
(ERMP) HeZAAERAR([EEER]) (A
)TV ERE FEEXRHMBERLE - UtER
Gttt 2 BB #)42.5% ~ 42.5% N 15.0% 2 » R
Frics ~ Bri+ KBl R 5 £ BN GEM LM #E A% 20
EMAENREXNE ] MESEHBBEEEERDE
EEITIRAIRIES50% @ RIEGEM iR 825 20.10(2)(b)
1 FEEERABMAERMZTHHEA - Bt Hil
IR(EAMP) BEEERN(EAEE)EF LTEER
FERAERS -

BEREE BB ERENFBRRGE P BREM T
38 °

HEER

HZECOIFI3ANALEFE BEEE ERBRER
BEEANBEA(EE RGEM LA R) K 2021 F3
A 31 BEAEEESEE S EEENHF R TREERE
T (] 3755 R HE 7B () 4 2 ok B 2K SR (B 5 1 ) L At

HEHR -

73



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Eachof Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Delighting View (collectively
the “Covenantors” or each, a “Covenantor”), being the Controlling
Shareholders, has entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has,
among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries), on a joint and
several basis, that at any time during the period commencing on the date
of Listing and expiring on the earlier of (i) the date upon which the Shares
cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange; or (i) the date upon which the
Covenantors and their close associates cease to own 30% or more of the
then issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly, such
Covenantor shall not, and shall procure that neither their respective close
associates nor companies controlled by the Covenantors (other than the
members of the Group) will (i) directly or indirectly, be interested in or
involved in or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each
case whether as a director or shareholder (other than being a director or
shareholder of any member of the Group)) in any form of business,
including but not limited to any joint venture, alliance, cooperation,
partnership which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly
with the Group’s business in any area in which the Group carries or may
carry on business (the “Restricted Activity”) from time to time; nor
provide support in any form to persons other than the members of the
Group to engage in business that constitutes or may constitute direct or
indirect competition with the businesses that the Group is currently and
from time to time carrying on; (ii) solicit any existing employee of the
Group for employment by him/her/it or his/her/its close associates or
companies controlled by him/her/it; and (i) without the consent of the
Company, make use of any information pertaining to the business of the
Group which may have come to his/her/its knowledge for any purpose of
engaging, investing or participating in any Restricted Activity. Such
non-competition undertaking does not apply to holding shares of a
company which conducts or is engaged in any Restricted Activity
provided that, such shares are listed on a recognised stock exchange
and: (a) the total number of the shares held by the Covenantors and/or
their respective close associates (in aggregate) does not amount to more
than 5% of the issued shares of such company; and (b) the Covenantors
and/or their respective close associates are not entitled to appoint a
majority of the directors or management of that company. Details of the
Deed of Non-competition have been disclosed in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual
confirmation as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Covenantors had fully complied with the Deed of Non-competition for
the year ended 31 March 2021, the independent non-executive Directors
noted that (a) the Covenantors declared that they had fully complied with
the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2021; (b) no
new competing business was reported by any Covenantor for the year
ended 31 March 2021, and (c) there was no particular situation rendering
the full compliance of the Deed of Non-competition being questionable. In
view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Deed of Non-competition was complied with by all Covenantors
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

On 30 November 2015, Mr. Jackson Yuen has also entered into a deed
of non-competition with the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Jackson
Yuen has made similar undertakings to the Company as those given by
the Controlling Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 41 to
62 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the resignation of World Link CPA
Limited due to its reorganisation under which the audit engagement
director and the audit engagement team joined another professional
accounting firm with effect from 10 February 2020 and McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the casual vacancy.

A resolution to re-appoint McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held at Unit A, 12th Floor,
Mai Sik Industrial Building, 1-11 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 10 August 2021 at 11:00 a.m. and a
notice of the 2021 AGM will be published and despatched in due course.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2021
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PRIME INTELLIGENCE SOLUTIONS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prime
Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

RREZER

MR EEFAAREE SRR MH ARG AN
BROBESABENFE - RS FANTFERER
BAMBRERMUTAERHEE  TESTRYR
SERREBIAER - ESTHTOFRORE | KO)
B 5 BB E AR RS RO R B

opinion on these matters. We have determined (i) allowance for
inventories; and (i) impairment of trade receivables to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREREE EEEERPNAEERREREE

() Allowance for inventories

() FEEE
Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(f), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(c) and its relevant
disclosures in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BRRRE TS HMEMN T4 T E B - [ 7T 5(c) Bie ) &F
R AdFH LA R P 5 20 9 16 B 12 35 1 o
The Group had inventories with net carrying amount of  Our procedure in relation to net realisable value determination
approximately HK$22,979,000 as at 31 March 2021 (after as well as impairment assessment of inventories carried out
related allowance of approximately HK$858,000 provided as by the management included:
at 31 March 2021). EEEHBREEERROAIERFEETURFEREBEN G
R2021 3 A31H ESEHEAREFELN22,979,00087T BFEHE:
17 E (KK 2021 4 3 A 31 B 542 /948 B 8 #5 £9 858,000
HITI&) © —  Reviewing the ageing of inventory;

-  EREFERK:
The Group operates in an industry where technological
development may significantly affect the valuation of —  Identifying and assessing aged and obsolete items of
inventories as its products would become slow-moving or inventory while attending the physical inventory count;
outdated when products with new technology emerge. — ZHEERTFERINE  BAIKTHEERREFEER
wR EEEREMETENLE  MRERSUHTFRMLEE
SAREXE  EVHMEERERE EEMKEHEIE G - —  Assessing the Group’s internal control over the
inventory provision in particular the Group’s policy on

The estimation of the allowance for inventories of these allowance for slow-moving and outdated inventories;
inventories requires management to make judgements based —  #F{h BEEBEHEFEBENADEG  LERE BE&E
on these inventories’ ages, obsolescence, future usage plan, HHHEMRETENBEECR
estimated net selling prices as well as inventory disposal
plans. Actual sales or usages are likely to be different from —  Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of
those estimated or forecast since anticipated events the methodologies adopted by the management in
sometimes do not occur as expected and unforeseen events determining the net realisable value for those slow-
may arise, and their impact on estimates and forecasts may moving and outdated items of inventory; and
be material. — FMAEREETZSHHMREFEHE ERFER
ERERAENZEFENERR WRERE  REARAE mEFTENAEBEERERE &
e FEEUREEHEAEHEL HE - UEHAZEEFE
R  BERHEEIARAIEEZEMENIEATE - —  Reviewing the subsequent sales to corroborate the
TR TEET S4B BT a0 T8 BIAR 3 A R AT gE B AR TR AT DASN assumptions used by the management.
BVEM - A RIERR T BB ERX - —  EZREBEHEUEEEEEGCRAMNMR -
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Key Audit Matter
BREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERPNAEERREREE

(1)
(1)

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 WA B E

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(v), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(d), financial risk
management in note 6(b) and its relevant disclosures in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLRGEEREBN T 4) EZE5TE - 51 5(c) B+ Er
RAEF - HIaE6(b) 81 75 BB B HE L R [ 55 21 RIAE RS 15 75 F 1A -

During the course of business, the Group would grant credit
terms to its customers ranged between 30 to 90 days. The
Group would perform periodic assessment on the impairment
of trade receivables by basing on information including credit
risk characteristics of each customer, historical ageing and
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected
timing and amount of recovering outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers
and forward-looking information that may impact its
customers’ abilities to repay the outstanding trade
receivables in order to estimate the expected credit losses
(“ECL”) for the impairment assessment.

REBBRIER BEESRHTFPETI0ZE0HMEE
He BXEERBEBESEPNEERREE - BARRREE
s8R HIgAE MR - THERNE] R (B3R A SRV B ) [ @ BB A
REMAEPNBERIBREMEFEATFEENKRER
S RYGRIENE DA EEREER - §8 5 RIKRIEY
REEITERE - A EDRER A TEREEEE((ASE
EEE]) -

Due to impairment of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management judgements and
estimates, we considered this as a key audit matter.
ERTEHEEEREX THNE SRR BERES RERE
REBEHE LG MESRA/UTDRAREREIE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:
EEEHEE HEYGRIBRET GO EZEFRIE

—  Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

—  HMAGEEREH - WEEEREREEEEATOBRERA
BRI IRIRRET © B RIEVERK

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models by examining the model input used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions variables and assumptions used in each of
the economic scenarios and their probability weightings
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances;

— FREREETEREMNELEEAE R ARET
h BEEEEHEEEEEANGEN  EhaEAR
BEENBIENERNY  THBTEBEEISREER
BRI P E AR RS LEER TR RRREE
R BETEERAE  RIALESEDRREREREER
EREERERTFERR

—  Re-performing the calculations in the ECL model;
—  EETEAGEEEEEANE

— Inspecting settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables as at 31 March 2021;
and

—  RERFEERERENR 202153 A31 HOE HEKK
THMEENEEER &

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements in relation to
the Group’s credit risk exposure.

- EENTEHRGEUBHRKRTHELEHE E5EEE
[E\b )RR BRI IR B L -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the Company’s
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our opinion is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and

to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633

3/F., Winbase Centre
208 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

hEEEkEMEZEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021F3H31 BILFE

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE TET FAT
Revenue & 8 45,987 50,842
Cost of sales and services rendered $HE N BRI RS A (26,201) (26,264)
Gross profit EF 19,786 24,578
Other income HAb A 9 2,466 891
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR AR (4,840) (5,141)
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 & £ fth 48 &4 5 % (23,817) (22,989)
Impairment loss of trade receivables B S RYIEREEE (215) (162)
Loss from operation REKE 2 EE (6,620) (2,767)
Finance costs RS AR AN 10 (176) (209)
Loss before tax BR¥ AT B 18 11 (6,796) (2,976)
Income tax expense AR X 12 (305) (402)
Loss for the year attributable to KATEREE AEMN
equity owners of the Company FREE (7,101) (3,378)
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEEE - HIRHE !
for the year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified to AJREEM S EEBm 2B -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HE G INETSRE 2 [E =58
foreign operations 538 (418)
Total comprehensive income BATEREEAEBLEFRAZE
for the year attributable to Wi 4a 58
equity owners of the Company (6,563) (8,796)
Loss per share (HK cents) BREE GBI
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 15 (0.89) (0.42)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2021
720213 431 H

2021 2020
2021 §F 2020 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iikza FHET FHT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N L 17 1,095 1,144
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 1,704 1,399
Intangible assets B EE 19 21 70
2,820 2,613
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 20 22,979 20,943
Trade receivables B 5 WA 21 9,547 8,333
Other receivables, prepayments HabfEUGRIE - AN RERIES
and deposits 22 2,493 2,839
Tax recoverable AU B 77 IR 85 2,643
Bank and cash balances RITNRIBR 4% 23 59,172 65,147
94,276 99,905
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables Z 5 e FUR 24 499 898
Other payables and accrued expenses Hih e ZIE N EETE A 25 3,667 4,270
Lease liabilities HERE 26 1,597 1,804
Contract liabilities AHBE 27 7,681 5,191
Current tax liabilities ENHIRIB A & 118 o
13,562 127163
Net current assets RBEEFE 80,714 87,742
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 83,534 90,355
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 26 1,285 1,175
Contract liabilities AHaE 27 45 413
1,330 1,588
NET ASSETS EEZFE 82,204 88,767
2B A A R A 7 / 4 952021 85



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R

At 31 March 2021
720213 431 B

2021 2020
2021 §F 2020 4F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
K et TET FHT

Capital and reserves BEARK#HE
Share capital &N 30 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 32 74,204 80,767
TOTAL EQUITY RS 82,204 88,767

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 720214 6 A 22 Bi&E Fe #lf KT -
2021.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline
Bre B {2 =g

86 Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

2 AL 3L 4=
mEERBER
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RAREE AL
Foreign
currency
Share Share Merger Legal translation Retained Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits reserve equity
A& B EE Xl EERE PMRAERE REEF BiRE BEs
(note 32(c)(i)  (note 32(c)fii)  (note 32(c)fii))  (note 32(c)(iv))
(BZ32))  (HaE32()i) (a2 32()i) (Haa2c))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx T TAL T T TAL T TATL
At 1 Aprl 2019 R2019F4 A 18 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (271) 16,061 84,563 92,563
Loss and total comprehensive income  EREER2E
and changes in equity for the year W BB REREE - - - - (418) (3378) (3,799) (3,79)
At31 March2020and 1 April 2020 122020453 A31 B
%2020 4 18 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (689) 12,683 80,767 88,767
Loss and total comprehensive EREEREENEEE
income and changes in equity NRERED
for the year - - - - 538 (7,101) (6,563) (6,563)
At 31 March 2021 R202153R31A 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (151) 5,582 74,204 82,204
,4/’
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021F3H31 BILFE

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
K et TET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax KR A 18 (6,796) (2,976)
Adjustments for: HATSIBEELAE
Interest income A BUA (152) (811)
Amortisation B 49 49
Depreciation of property, Y - REMEETTE
plant and equipment 585 742
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 1,904 1,611
Finance costs BA SR AN 176 209
Impairment loss of trade receivables 2 5 e W B R A S 1 215 162
Allowance for inventories FEEME 105 220
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BER&EEE
plant and equipment 157 -
Operating loss before working capital RIBESEHALLEERE
changes (3,757) (794)
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,490) (385)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 2 5 FEIRIE (g ),/ F (1,235) 990
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HAEWGRIE - BRFRIER
prepayments and deposits BemD (38 373 (238)
Decrease in trade payables & 5 FE OB R (678) (1,687)
Decrease in other payables Hih e sE Rk AT E A
and accrued expenses DEReS (635) (1,237)
Increase in contract liabilities AHAaEEnNn 2,122 436
Cash used in operations REFRRARS (5,300) (2,915)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (refund)/paid (BRE)/BNEBFER 2,371 (489)
Macao Complementary Tax paid DR SR AT = (92)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBRNS (176) (193)
Interest paid BEAFE = (16)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEMAREFE (3,105) (3,705)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 HIEFE

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat TET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - FE K& &E (700) (92)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME MELEERESZIE
plant and equipment 18 -
Interest received EHFE 152 811
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities ~— &&E8) (FT ) /Fia i 4 %48 (530) 719
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHHRLSTE
ACTIVITIES
Import/export loans raised B/ HOER = 1,585
Repayments of import/export loans %ﬁi;&/ﬁj my=E ¢ - (1,585)
Principal element of lease payments HENRASELD (2,410) (2,104)
Net cash used in financing activities BE EESFT RIS R (2,410) (2,104)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERESEEWRDF
EQUIVALENTS (6,045) (5,090)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (&R FHE e 70 97)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERBESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 65,147 70,334
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNESRRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 59,172 65,147
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERESEEBUWHIN
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 23 59,172 65,147
e g R BARA R / #2021 89



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

1.

920

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempt company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2015. The address
of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is located at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132,
Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange since 14 February 2018 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are sales of biometrics identification
devices and other devices and accessories and provision of
auxiliary and other services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the GEM Listing Rules and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance of Hong
Kong (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 below provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

—RER

ANRAFER2015F10 A 16 AR EBEF EBS R RLE (K
B EREREAMK L AEREAERAR - &
+F it % = B2t 4k A& Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands © H F 2 & FE M B A b I 7 R &
PEFT RSB A EPHE132-1345R TLP132/N12AR -
RRAARMDE 8201852 14 H # R B 3 AT
GEM £ ([ET ) -

ARRAR—EREBKRART - ENBRANEE
EEAEEEMREBENEEREMCEE R
o ARARHEE R EMIRT -

mREE

WHFRAEMBRRIDIREEEHHREER(EF
BUBHEER ) (FEetmag ([FBEEM
DREDEMZEEMERRVBREEN(EE
MB|MELERA ) FEGHEAN(EBEFE
Bl REEZGE) REEARN ST RAGS -
It 47 A M ISR IR & GEM L AR BIl #0884
BIEX BB QRGN (BEENFE 622 ) MK
BIRE - AEERMDERNG RN TG -

EEGFM ARG RME T REEITZER
MBMELEL IRAKREZER G ER
R AR AR o 112 M A Uk S 2R B P B B
BRAEERNEf LBE ST AMMER SR
KEHER U SHEEUBRRARK - BEEH
FHNTPHFES »
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied any new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2020. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

3. HMHITREBITERMBHREER (K)

(b) CHEMERERERMFR REBTEE
RS R
ANER H 3 4R R 2 B M 1B 20204 4
A1 BRI EREE M AR R HT AT AR
ERIBBMBEMEED - ZFHa] REE
RIBBMBMEENBEAT A EAE
EARHIEE ©

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT Bz 2%

BRI ST BB AN

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 related rent concessions 1 June 2020

BBMBHREENE 165 (TR FEETHARSHEREAE R R

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

20206 A 1H
1 January 2021

BEMIBHMEERFE W - BEGHERIE 395 - HBEVBIHRELET - 202141 A1H
BEMBRELAE 4T REBVBERELRNFE 165 (BFTA) MREENE — F2RR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB EERE 35 (BT AR) Sl S E2R A 1Rt 202241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
EBGTERIE 165 (BRI X)) WE - BE XXM - (EH] AR FT1SRIE 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BEEERIE 37 (BRI R) EFEH — BITARKA 202241 418
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BRI IR E %R 2018 4 = 2020 F A HiH) F Z U 202241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BEREGTHERFE S (BT R) BEEDERREIIERE 20231 A1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

(@) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

94

(@

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (i) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated amounts in other comprehensive
income.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses
and profits and losses are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions which owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.

4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

4.

i%%%‘fﬂl"ﬁ(%’é)

(a)

(b)

‘g‘%'_A

*# (48)

JEFERR RS 2 SR B B RSP ST AR (B

EOMN

FEzHNEMEREEN R ®

R AFEBRARBEEBA °

EARRBEBARERA - 5B QB
BEUKARERERBEIIE  RIFRE
DERFELE (T A ERFIELED
HEEA) -

INEEI]RE

()

(i)

gER 25| B8
AEBSEENI K HREANMEIEEA
B O AZERCENEIELER
BEE((hEER T2 - 460
BHREUBT((BT]) 25 Bk
KRR REFNEE o

BEEREZUBHRR TG RAEE

INER SR VIFFER K IIRZ 5 A 8
MIRTTIERRE AT « JNEE
”r%%é%&% EIR S HE HARAE R

o [E 5 BUR E A B s BB R E
HANFER -

BATERERAINEHENIFEY
BHADREEXTEE BHERS
g o

BIFEREANREIEENEME
T W s R R E%SZ’_'\EEJ%TEE’]ETT
PE R BN EAMEE W R ER - B
fﬁi’flﬁﬁ Hl s E RN R Wﬁﬁm

© 2R kB 1R Y AR AT S B Y
Eﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬂu =

95



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

4.

96

(b)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of the
net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

4. FEEHBER(E)
(b) SMEBRE ()
(i) AR ERRE
AR AR F 25 &% TH
BOFTA AN SR I T T AR A 34 I B
BRRGE T AR RE AR DN
2IEE

- BUBRRERMIEERERE
BRZFBRAR B BRI
ERGH

- ZEmzkEMEEREROK
AR RGN 1 [ R
H(RIEZTFHBLIERSA
HMRITEXRRFEENEE
BB QBB TUA R
MR ZHHOEZRBKE)
K

- FTEELAMENZBHRIINE
BERETER -

ki
}

’Akﬁﬁ'lﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁg
MEMIEE MMEREENEN Z58
BA ﬁﬁaaﬁﬁ”& SHERR I RETRA SN 2
o BHERINERE - BN
[ifi%EgﬁﬁAiﬁ’\?ﬁﬁmﬁPEé%ﬁ’\*ﬁf%ﬂj
B REEN—HH

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FEETTBER (&)
(c) Property, plant and equipment () W% BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less ME - BB REREDIRRABRZSITER
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost WEBESE - M BEREREBER 2
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its RABEBRIEAEEERMEFZEAEEERH
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing BMERBzEEMRRRME 2 TR EEE
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended IERAR -
use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying EEmEE AN RREENEBSRA
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, AEE - BIEB MK AREEM A S5t 2 H -
only when it is probable that future economic benefits HERAT Gt NEEREESERS—
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost EBEVEEWER) - FTBEMAEE RR
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and BERANEEENBREAEZAER -
maintenance are recognised in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated W RE REETE TR EME A A
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual FHRIR 2 DAMEE LR AR R sR (BB H) e
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. LEHEE - REMRAzEEF R0
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as T~
follows:
Depreciation
rate
E=R
Furniture and fixtures EMREE 20%
Biometric identification devices EWRRERIRE 20%
Motor vehicles RE 30%
Computer equipment B 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The
gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

98

(d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet
these criteria is expensed when incurred. With respect to
staff costs incurred directly attributable to solution service
income, it will be regarded as cost of sales and charged to
profit or loss of the Group accordingly.

Software development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when
the software are put into commercial production.

4.

FEERBER (H)

(d)

BREE (BERM)

BANETEER VIS HERRZM AT E
BVAENAERFHHERAEREER
FHARNEBVEEBRRAEAEESF
HAEH YAEEEETRBENELE
EREHIRE - Al AFERERNETY
BEMNBHFHREHTDENSHRERR

LA -
s o

MEFERABMELNFXRAGHELE
Eae AR H AR ERES e BTV B E
B E RS HE  TEEREEL R
MAEREB 2 E - BEWFIEERE
KENDS FRAERATHKEBLAA
seh RIS A HRRPRENORNBERT -
TEBIEEARRIRIE - AR A ALAE
A EmMIBFAXEEEERHE - 38
RIERBEXREENEINATSE - £
TR R E A - W AR EE

18

E\

S o

IR B AR AR ERDRUE B 1RSI
VTABEAERBEER N BAEEEN
FHOTF (B EIRE R Ay -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets, which for the Group are primarily office
premises. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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4.

TEERBEKR(E)

(e)

HE

REHNRBE  AEESFHZENES
RABEEE - WEHRRABRREME T
FE—BREEAEGIE#REEERNERN
AZaARBEERE - WEPAREER
ERNEENERREZERPESEX
DKM - BIRREAEDIRE o

AL [E R AT

WeEKNEeesHERy KRGS - AA
SEEENENOFEESD  UsAMEHR
EREHEERS REFBENERE D
ARINSE—MRERD

REERBEH  AEERAEAEEE
LEEaRE  HHEEHA12EAHATH
EHHERKEEEE (HMAREMEIE
R ARG MERIBRS - B RSB HEE
BEEFVHEE  AIAKBERERGLRE
HERERHEEAN - BRFHAE
AMEMmEEFROBENRREER R
R EERR R -

WHEREAML  HERENIREE
HRRENEENRNREER - XER
HERR SR RETIR - AR
EAESET  REREMEERERNE -
KT HERZ - HE & ERBHEKAGTE
M85 X RIE B BB A RORFE - TE
RGBS N R ZHEE N FHALTEFA
HEABENFE  HREELN S HE
BEmNE o

99



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

100

(€

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract (“Lease
Modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

U]

(9)

ELE

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis and
comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised in the profit or loss in the period
of write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories recognised as an increment in
the amount of inventories and recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognised the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

102

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

— Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses (“ECL”), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

104

U

0

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(V)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flow. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

106

(0)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of biometric identification devices,
security products and other accessories is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the buyer’s specific location (delivery).
Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers are
entitled to a one-year maintenance. At the point of sale, a
contract liability and corresponding adjustment to revenue is
recognised, representing the unfulfilled performance
obligation of the maintenance services. The contract liability
would be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over
the warranty period.

Revenue from provision of solution, installation and other
services are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and delivered to customers.

Revenue from maintenance services are recognised on a
straight-basis over the term of the maintenance period.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

(p)

(q)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

108

(@

U]

()

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

110

(s)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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4,

2k

o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties (continued)

=)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

)

(i)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

112

(u)

v)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal
of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst
the other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL measured at
amortised cost such as trade receivables. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

114

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

4. FEETTBER (&)
vy S@REEREGE)
1B R REEE I (E)
BEEms  FEEEERREEBNISER
LARBRZE M EEBATER

. ERTANNB(NE) XAEBEE
FHAREER KRR ER(

. ABSRIANEERROINBTS
SimE B

4

T

. 1% SRIEEREE X NE
HERTMZE  YHRAEEBAD
EFERENERE T

. BERANCEEEER FRTaERE
21t

. BRAEREHANEM ST ANE
EEREAEIL N

o BERAEHOEE  EERBITRS
EER ERBHEREBATHS
B - BHEHANEH B BE
T -

T L EER  AEERE - EE6 4
RFBEEBI0H - Mg NFTERARS
REENEERRDEZEN  BRIERE
EEaRRAKENERFARE R -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31 BIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

116

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future
by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

118

v)

(w)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

4.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(@ Impairment loss for property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

5.

120

@

(b)

©

Impairment loss for property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets as at 31 March 2021
were approximately HK$1,095,000, HK$1,704,000 and
HK$21,000 (2020: HK$1,144,000, HK$1,399,000 and
HK$70,000) respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

During the year, income tax of approximately HK$305,000
(2020: HK$402,000) was charged to profit or loss based on
the estimated assessable profits.

Allowance for inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the ageing,
change in the market conditions and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$105,000 (2020: HK$220,000) was charged to profit or
loss.

5.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)  Impairment of trade receivables
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss of trade receivables under ECL model based
on the credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately HK$9,547,000 (2020:
HK$8,333,000), being net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$555,000 (2020: HK$340,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of respective Group’s entities such as United States
dollars (“US$”) and RMB.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

5.

B H W & E RS ()

AT REREZNETERR (B)

@  EZEKKERE
REEEREDREESEBIGANEE
R EREEEEENTE SRR
EHREBIESRE EXREHEEBER
AOREBBESEDRRIEAOENARE
Em AT A A KRS E B K E T8 H UER
BWERSRENE YRV HRAKE
EMBEBRREYERE - ARBEERELR
B KAEBEREREHME T - A
AIREELEARERIE -

MR2021F3A3HE  BES5EIKKERE
E#4949,547,000 7% 7T (2020 4F : 8,333,000
BIT) - B R IR B & £9555,000% TT
(20204 : 340,000/%87T) °

B ISR b B R
AEENERARZZIENBERER - SNERR -
FERR  FEREREADESRER - AEE
BRERREETEEIRNSMMIS T TEA
M BEERAEREESNEENBERREXNNE
ETFRE -

(@) hEEREER
AEEZERBNNEEETENET - A
RE(TARY ) FZORPTE (AP ])FHE
HRARENROEBR S  BERAR
TAREEEREBNNEEEIAINE
BnET(ER D RARE) BEM - 8
AREE AT E TINERR

121



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021F3H31 BILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@

122

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The directors of the Company is of the opinion since the HK$
is pegged against the US$ and MOP is pegged against HK$,
the risk of movements in exchange rates between HK$ and
US$, and HK$ and MOP to be insignificant. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is performed on the movements in
exchange rates between HK$ and US$; and HK$ and MOP.
Whilst, the sensitivity analysis of the Group’s foreign currency
risk exposure in respect of RMB is set out below:

6.

B EEEE (&)
(@ SRR

ARBEZERE  mRNETTEITHE -
iR PT#E EE T - BT AR TTRETT
HBPIEHE R RBREN - Bt - I
58 TU 3 SR TT S8 TT SR P e [ R
FETHEREIN - AWM NAEERAR
BEHINERBROGUREDITESIIT

Functional Increase/

currency (decrease) in

strengthened/ consolidated

(weakened) by loss after tax

EEE KRBIEREEER

FE(B1E) &, ()

HK$’000

FAT

Year ended 31 March 2020 HE20206F3 A1 BIFFRE 5%/(5%)  20/(20)Mow ()
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZ2021 F3A31BLFE 5%/(5%)  15/(15)Nete) (Hiiz)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

fret - WTHEERRAARBENRITER
B 5 NEMBYRFIRALE S REMREN
FROEFTE L RE B s (B51R) o

AEEBALERIIERS  BEREE
BIRT R SNE SRR - REEZ Y8R
HIMNERR TR EFEEEEHHEKR
SN LR o
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Company considers to
have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at

31 March 2021:

B mBREE ()

(b) EERE(E)
B S EN A (B)

TRIBHENR2021 FE3 /31 HWAEEE 5
ERFBEERR RBHEEBEER

2021

2021
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE BREAAE EERE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T THET
Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) 0.0% 3,322 37
1-90 days past due wWEI1ZE00H 1.0% 4,137 7
91-180 days past due #HEI91 E 180 H 1.3% 957 24
More than 180 days past due & &i#8:% 180 H 28.9% 1,686 487
10,102 555

2020

2020 F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEERE 1R BRERE EEEE
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Current (not past due) BNER (R AR) 0.9% 3,966 37
1-90 days past due ®EI1E90H 1.0% 1,723 17
91-180 days past due #HEFO1 =180 H 1.4% 1,232 17
More than 180 days past due  #Hi#E:E 180 H 15.4% 1,752 269
8,673 340
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6.

o

(b)

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HEEBEE(H)
Credit risk (continued) (b) EERRE)
Trade receivables (continued) B G REWE ()
Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables during FRESHEVEBERHSEHNT :
the year are as follows:
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHT
At 1 April R4A18 340 178
Impairment losses recognised for the year 4 R TER R E ETIE 215 162
At 31 March H3A31H 555 340
Interest rate risk () RI=EER
The Group’s lease liabilities bear interests at fixed interest FEBHEEABEREEMNEGE - Bt
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks. T B X E A R E
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its REBEBONXRRR KB RITFER - &%
bank deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating FRITFRRBEERRITM R NF D
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. MEETR -
Except as stated above, the Group does not have other B Lt & 5 - AR B S BRI E Al
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of EAFREERAR  HEARKERS
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are MERB B IR TISF R
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk d) FEBELER

(@

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

BERHREEAR AR / #2021

ZK;%E“Jﬂlkkﬁ'riﬁﬁﬁtﬁiﬁﬁﬂ”&iﬁﬁﬁmmu
PECHFE  UBRHERSRIAENES
EREMRSHESHFRNREFHE

TERBETASESRABERSREHRY
BRTANIHBER  DERKRBBERSR
B (BERaNNXE (HFE) RikE B H
ENEAR R E A F B0 RA S E w3 E
KXATHRE BEEL -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HEKEBRER(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REESER(E)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based EREHNARUBRHREREN T EE SRS
on contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BEIBRITOT :
Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2andb5 years
RER DPR1F 1828 2ZE5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FAT FET
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3H31H
Trade payables B SR = 499 = =
Other payables and accrued Ho A e 5 5008 % B 5
expenses =33 - 3,667 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,699 1,219 100
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3H831H
Trade payables 2 S EMA50E = 898 - -
Other payables and accrued H e 008 I B AT
expenses i35 - 2,921 - -
Lease liabilities HEEE - 1,904 745 479
(€) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March () M3IANHEHHERMIELER
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
Financial assets: eREE:
Financial assets at amortised costs REHER AT RN e REE 69,610 74,340
Financial liabilities: c@as:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs REHEN AR S REE 4,166 3,819
()  Fair values n 2¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEENCRIEERSRBERGEVE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement MAERMAREAREREESBN R TEHE
of financial position approximate their respective fair values. Ao
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7.

[E %

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Sales of biometrics identification devices, security products
and other accessories

— Provision of auxiliary and other services including (i)
maintenance, installation and solution services; and (ii)
software licensing

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income, finance
costs, unallocated costs, which comprise selling and distribution
expenses, corporate administrative and other operating expenses,
impairment loss of trade receivables and income tax expense.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented in the consolidated
financial statements as they are not regularly reviewed by the
Group’s directors.

BB EBER DR / F32021

FBER

REBHME ] Z2HD AT :

— HEAVEHBAEE RLEMEAEM
[inges

- REREREGRE  SREO#E TRk
BRI EEMRTE ¢ B (i) BUAFRTA] o

REBNA2RDE Y BRETEERRREH
RIS R EM - RS EH BRI L2
AR - B 2RO B ERERE

EED BRI BRERS W BRI T4 it
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DHER(E)
(@) Operating segment of the Group (@) AEELED
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: AR EWMOFBERAER
Sales of
biometrics
identification
devices,
security
products  Provision of
and other auxiliary and
accessories other services Total
HELMEH
mAlFEE -
REEmM RERER
& H o4 H AR % At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAET
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021E3A31HILEE
Revenue from external customers 2 BN E PRI & 30,228 15,759 45,987
Segment profit 580 A 13,953 5,833 19,786
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31HLLFE
Revenue from external customers 3k B 4MNER& P 8z 33,505 17,337 50,842
Segment profit 53 B A 16,276 8,302 24,578
Reconciliations of reportable segment and profit or loss: A2 HBERB R A HER
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Profit or loss: B
Total profit of reportable segments AT 2 My EBH R T B RE 19,786 24,578
Other income SN 2,466 891
Selling and distribution costs THE RO AR (4,840) (5,141)
Corporate administrative and EITHREMEERT
other operating expenses (23,817) (22,933)
Impairment loss of trade receivables B SRR R AR (215) (162)
Finance costs BT AR (176) (209)
Income tax expense PSRRI (305) (402)
Consolidated loss for the year FANERAEE (7,101) (3,378)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER(E)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER

Information about the Group’s non-current assets based on BRAEBRAEMENE ZIERBEE
the geographical location is presented as follows: BREHNWT

2021 2020
2021 §F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Hong Kong B 39,293 41,164
PRC =8 5,073 6,307
Macau P 1,621 3,371
Consolidated total ERE KERT 45,987 50,842
4
2B AR BIE IR A R / 4452021 129

2021 2020

2021 fF 2020 4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FET

Hong Kong B 2,699 2,443
PRC = 121 170
Consolidated total ERE HEGT 2,820 2,613

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the geographical location
where the Group operates is as follows:

FRBDEEBRME

BEENLEVEE -

CBEEREE ER

EHAEERELEMEMELE 2 RAH
MELPUMRNERZFIAT
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.
Information about major customers

()

(c)

The Group’s customer base which included one (2020: Nil)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 is set out as below:

7 EER ()

EHRFTERFNER
REBNWEFPHEE—%(2020F : 8)F
Fr EXSBEREZ2021F12A8318 K&
2020F 12 A1 B It FEBB AL E K=
#10% @ I -

2021 2020

2021 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHT

Customer A (note) BEAKZE) 4,663 N/A i@ A
Note: This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue HteE . ZBFREZE2020F3 A31 AILFEH

of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020. AEEBRKEHERTER10% °
8. Uz

8. REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and service
rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Yan e P m MR RIS EHBRE RITMNR
MBERE - AEEFAKRSEHONET

2021 2020
2021 2020 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAET

Sales of biometrics identification devices, HEEMFEHEIEE REERMKR
security products and other accessories Hm 30,228 33,505
Provision of auxiliary and other services IRERRE K H RS 15,759 17,337
45,987 50,842
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
Revenue from contracts with customers &HHE B EHEER B 15%EER HK$’000 HK$’000
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HNEEAHWE TET FAIT
Recognised at a point in time T — I B FERR 34,902 37,762
Recognised over time & B P R AR 11,085 13,080
45,987 50,842
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8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Uk (%)
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance D E2021E3ANHE NELNET(KREITH
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2021 AKBT) R SBEREIESHEZWFZNT
and the expected recognising revenue are as follows:
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Provision of auxiliary and other services RERERE MRS
Within one year N—FR 7,681 5,191
More than one year but not more than LR —FEDRWE
two years 45 413
7,726 5,604
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfttltA
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Interest income B A 152 811
Government grants* T HEBh 2,284 -
Others HAith 30 80
2,466 891
* Government grants represent subsidies from the Government of the * BT B 15 BB R RITT R E BUF R IB R oL 251 &
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment TRHLRYERL ©
Support Scheme.
At the end of the reporting period, there are no unfulfilled conditions RIREHER - AR RWEBRFHEBMMS KRBT
nor other contingencies attached to the government grants. e Bt EIE o
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. M#HKA
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interests on import/export loans #HOERF B = 16
Effective interest expenses on lease liabilities  AE&EHEERF S 176 193
176 209
7
22 h R B IR A R / 12021 131
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11.

132

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging the following:

11. BRBIATEE
2R [E IR AT ES 18 TO S N BR A RS TB 51 BR -

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt THET FHT
Amortisation of intangible assets mR B ERE (i 19)
(note 19) 49 49
Depreciation e
— Owned assets (note 17) —BBEEWF17) (@) 585 742
— Right-of-use assets (note 18) — FREEE (HE18) 1,904 1,611
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXKN(BEESEHE)
emoluments) (b)
— Salaries, bonus, allowances and — e TE4 - ERR R
other benefits in kind H b B Y F a8 23,103 23,092
— Commission — B4 643 341
— Retirement benefits — RRREFET IR
scheme contributions 949 1,192
24,695 24,625
Loss on disposals of property, LEYE - BER
plant and equipment R EEE 157 -
Cost of inventories sold EETFERA 14,632 16,713
Foreign exchange losses, net [E X EiBEE 314 26
Operating lease charges in YIERGEREST T
respect of premises 450 108
Auditors’ remuneration ZERBE 503 503
Impairment loss of trade receivables Z 5 EUGRERERE 215 162
Allowance for inventories (included FEEE(BERENHEER
in cost of sales and services BRIE KA )
rendered) 105 220
Notes: et
() Depreciation on owned assets of approximately HK$77,000 for the (@) HZE2021F3AGIHLFENABEENEY

year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil) is included in costs of sales

and services rendered.

(b) Staff costs of approximately HK$5,405,000 for the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: HK$5,064,000) are included in cost of sales and

services rendered.

77,0008 7T (2020 4F : &) B 5t A SH & RIBHARTS

B

B Z2021463H381H It F & -

BETRAD

5,405,000 7% 7T (2020 4F : 5,064,000/ 7T) E.5F A

$HE IR ARG AORRAS o
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FrigsimE%
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAREIE — EBNEH
Provision for the year FRNEE 429 390
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (124) -
305 390
Macau Complementary Tax SEPIETS R
Provision for the year FREE - 48
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE = (36)
- 12
Total tax charge for the year FANRGEE A 305 402

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the
rate of 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) for the first HK$2 million of its
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on its
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other Hong Kong
subsidiaries not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax Regime are
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is
subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2020:
25%) during the year. No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the year ended 31 March 2021 as the Group’s PRC
subsidiary has sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off
against assessable profit for the current year (2020: No assessable
profits for the year).

ZEBER R EBARRAT / F352021

REEBRHNHERE R RBRELEENTIA -

BEMBAFESREE  NARER—EEEN B
NRIZASLIAFT ERBUR T B E 2 B B8 Tik8.25%
(20204 : 8.25%) WIF KM BB REH » Wik
FEiE2 B B AT A E FER TR FI1Z 16.5% (2020
F 1 16.5%) M B RGN E B FIB T o 2 E=2021
FIABIEFE  EMTFEMAF SR GE
H &M B A BB 16.5% (2020 4F : 16.5%) HY)
RGN BERIEH o

FR - ANEBERBENREEHHEBARAER
FAE 25% (2020 %F : 25%) B B> ¥ FBHL -
B A 7 £ (8 /9 R B Y B 1 B SR 4 AR BT AR B S
18 LA 85 7K 4F JE /O B SR B s B (2020 FF < SR ASE
EERTER) B E2021F3A31BIEFE
W E P B ZEMREH -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

12.

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in Macau is
subject to Macau Complementary Tax, under which taxable income
of up to MOP600,000 (2020: MOP600,000) is exempted from
taxation with taxable income beyond this amount to be taxed at the
rate of 12% (2020: 12%) for the years ended 31 March 2021.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate of the Group is as follows:

FriSBiBA % (48)
ANEBETERPIR T R A& H B A R B ARM
FriSmzeRt - Bt - BiE2021F3A31BIEFE -
& SR B U A & =600,0008 9 ¥ (20204 :
600,000 8 PI¥E) BA G 4N TE - BB IH 2 & FE 00 FERR B
WAIE 12% (2020 4F = 12%) B TR RN -

ST SR AT R IR R A A R B F B RIS
Tﬁfr 2 BEER BRI T

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Loss before tax BRELATE 18 (6,796) (2,976)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% A E 16.5% (2020 F : 16.5%)

(2020: 16.5%) STEMRIE (1,121) (4971)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable TERBURA BT 75 5 2 (495) (227)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ EH0 3 5 =2 &0 Fi 75 5 22 1,428 1,188
Tax effect of temporary differences KRR 2NN G E

not recognised (25) (105)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B RBTRERBEESN

not previously recognised B2 (267) (7)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBRGEROHRGETE 946 301
Over-provision in prior years BEEEBERE (124) (36)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEBRARTRABRNFE 128 (56)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate BERENB KT E (165) (165)
Income tax expense for the year FERFREHES 305 402
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@)

Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company, or its

subsidiaries undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

13. EEREEMHS
(a E=#e

MEEES (T

N
A A=

BE20215F3HA31BLLFE

ARRREMERFD
EE)MATEXNREMOFHMOT -

Retirement
Other benefits
Salaries and Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus in kind contributions Total
Hity RIKER
e HeRER BETEAL BYFE &I #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THER FTHER FTER FTHERT TiER
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony BBl {& s 4
(“Mr. Tony Yuen’) (MBeskes]) - 1,608 91 606 18 2,323
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline fr¥ 7+
(“Ms. Pauline Yuen’) (Mrzt]) - 1,356 88 - 18 1,462
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BR% LT - 480 61 - 18 559
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (note i) igtEiE s (Mati) - 420 - - 18 438
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph FRNTE 240 - - - - 240
Independent non-executive BV HITES
directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho AFOE R A 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chung Billy BEERLE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard & &1 5t 4 120 - - - - 120
600 3,864 240 606 72 5,382
135

EZBERKEBRARAR/ FH2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021F3H31 BILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EER{EESME (&)

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEH2(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BIZ2020F3 31 HILLFE
Retirement
Other benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees  allowances bonus inkind  contributions Total
Hith RIREF
e FHekEHY BYBTEAL EMF= BELGE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Tony Yuen it - 1,608 256 658 18 2,540
Ms. Pauline Yuen ftix+ = 1,356 216 - 18 1,590
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BRI L - 480 76 - 18 574
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (note i) oA A (Hrat) - 144 - - 2 146
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph FBAEE 240 = = - 9 249
Independent non-executive B3I FEHTES
directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho FUERAE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chung Billy BEERLE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard & (& 1 55 4 (ff&F i)
(note i) 10 - - - - 10
490 3,588 548 658 65 5,349
Notes: B -
0] Redesignated as executive director from independent non- i) MR20204F 3 A2 BB IERRTTE FHME
executive director on 2 March 2020 RWITES
(ii) Appointed on 2 March 2020 (i) 202063 H2 HEZR(E
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REZE2021 F % 2020F3 A31 HIEFE
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 WHREENELRENET NS AIZHE -

March 2021 and 2020.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2021 included 2 (2020: 2) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2020: 3) individuals are
set out below:

13. EERESHS(E)

(b)

AUBREEHMAL
HZE2021F3ASIAILFE  AEBAN
BRFMALTHRIEIE2E (20204 : 24)
BEE HEReE LMD TR KB -
H#34 (2020 : 348) ALHBNS#E 520
T

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Basic salaries and allowances HEAH & KE/M 3,221 3,114
Performance bonus RIRTEAT 223 730
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3 (k& Fll 5214 2k 54 54
3,498 3,898

The emoluments fell within the following band: B < BB A T [E -

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 3 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T 2 2
3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during
the years have been set out in the analysis presented above.

ZEBER R EBARRAT / F352021

(©

B £2021F K2020F3 A31 H IEF E -
AEEREANEMNESIESFTMALX
FHERT BN 1F 73 0 B2 =k 0 B2 K SR 1R 1 82
BRI RBERAHE -

EREEENE

SREBBENTES - FABNIER
BREEBHOMSEEHN EX 25RO
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESM< (&)
(continued)

(d) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (d) ZFEERRS  THIEHNPNERES
arrangements or contracts
Save for disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial BRERE ISR R MR8 AT B &S - L iE
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement and ARBIRBITANFTEARRBEERESHE
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which the FEESRHEREFHEERNERMEAK
Company was a party and in which a director of the EEEBEENEMEARS THRE
Company and the director’'s connected party had a material RPN RS F NI D RTFAE o

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year of at any time during the year.

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BB
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the RN BRF AN E S B IRERARE (2020 F ¢
year (2020: Nil). =K
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. SR EBE
(@) Basic loss per share (@) BREXEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the BREFREBBIHIERTIISENE -
following:
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss B8
Loss for the purpose of calculating STESRENSENER
basic loss per share (7,101) (8,378)
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4
’000 ‘000
TR FAx
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of FTEESREREBAE R INE
ordinary shares for the purpose of F5Er
calculating basic loss per share 800,000 800,000
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per AN EZASE T AR SREgSEE
share for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 as there BEZE 2021 F & 20203 A31 B ILFE
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares. M SRR E AR E B AR
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16.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
(2020: 5%) of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the employees of a Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC is a
member of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
this subsidiary. The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

16. BRRBRIFTE

AEBERBERBREDESH GO AEEM
FréaREEEFERIMAESHTE(RESH
B AEEYRESHIZHREFERTE
#15% (2020%F : 6%) 5 H - EBREEFTARS
& % 71,5007 7T (20204F : 1,500/8 7T ) M AE A
BEREEREEHRENES

REBEHBARBRR RS - REBEPBERINY
B BB X B B9 B 2 0 75 T BT E (R P SRR IR
Tt 8 - ZMBARARPRERSFEIZER
EAHERTENETADLLHE - URRKE
MEBHES - 77 TR A AEZN B AR
BIRA FORFRINE B RRIREM B - %K B
NAFLR SRR RS S ME— RERE N SR
TRERHEK -

#2021 4F [ 20204F 3 A 31 B I & & 78 4 5 EH &l
HE R R AT T -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y%  BERERHE

Furniture  Biometrics
and identification Motor Computer
fixtures devices vehicles  equipment Total
EYBH
GRREE BAIRE ARE BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FAT THET FHET
Cost B
At 1 April 2019 R20194 A1 H 924 313 2,246 880 4,363
Additions NE 30 C - 62 92
Exchange realignment i 5 A (30) - - (28) (58)
At 31 March 2020 and R202063 A31 B %

1 April 2020 2020F4 A1H 924 313 2,246 914 4,397
Additions B 40 436 65 159 700
Write off Hiss - (313) - - (313)
Disposals HE - - (500) - (500)
Exchange realignment ERAE 30 - - 28 58
At 31 March 2021 R2021£3A31AH 994 436 1,811 1,101 4,342
Accumulated depreciation ZiE
At 1 April 2019 R2019564H1H 266 313 1,265 703 2,547
Charge for the year FRZH 166 - 500 76 742
Exchange realignment BE R © - - 27) (36)
At 31 March 2020 and R202063 A31 B R

1 April 2020 20204 A1 H 423 313 1,765 752 3,253
Charge for the year FRZH 178 77 267 63 585
Write off igH - (313) - - (313)
Disposals HE - - (325) - (325)
Exchange realignment ERAE 20 - - 27 47
At 31 March 2021 R2021£3A31AH 621 77 1,707 842 3,247
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2021 H2021F3A31H 373 359 104 259 1,095
At 31 March 2020 K2020%3H31H 501 - 481 162 1,144
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2019 R2019%F4 818 1,285
Additions NE 1,725
Depreciation e (1,611)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 20209 3 431 HX2020%F4 A1H 1,399
Additions wnE 2,209
Depreciation e (1,904)
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 1,704

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,882,000 (2020:
HK$2,979,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$1,704,000 as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$1,399,000). These lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

2021 F3 A31H « R E & &42,882,000
78 70 (2020 4F 1 2,979,0007% 7t ) & [F) 48 B F F 42
B EE#91,704,00078 7T (20204F : 1,399,000/ 7T) °
ZERERETHRIMTARE  HHBAABEN
HEEEPIEFERRIN HEBETSHE
BR®AERE -

2021 2020

20214 2020 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets  # l#EE EHTER 1,904 1,611
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAENSFZ G ABBERA)

(included in finance cost) 176 193

For both years, the Group leases office and staff quarters for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

RREFE  AEEHERAEREIEEMHE
B2 BOBREERIF - HEGRFIZES
HAERER B8 BTRGREMGSE - REER
R ETAIRGERAERRE - AEEERESH
MEERNKEEAOARITHR -
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19.

20.

142

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
HK$’000
FER
Cost R
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 R2019%F4 8108 - 202038311 -
and 31 March 2021 20204 A1HKX2021$3H31H 1,850
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 4 A1H 1,731
Charge for the year FAZH 49
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 } 202043 831 A& 202044 A1H 1,780
Charge for the year FAXH 49
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3H31H 1,829
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2021 H2021E3H31H 21
At 31 March 2020 MR2020F3 A31H 70

Intangible assets represent internally generated capitalised software
development costs. Such intangible assets have definite useful life

BIVEERNSELE 2 ERMMERMFREERA - %
BVEAEAAERACAFHMTILERENSF

and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years. MY -
INVENTORIES 20. FE&
2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Merchandises =R 22,979 20,943

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are stated at
cost less allowance for inventories.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$105,000 (2020: HK$220,000) was charged to profit or loss.

RBEMR - AEEFERRARFEREIIE -

F R FE B E 1050008 jT(20204F : 4
220,000 7T) B BBk ©
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZEWFIE
2021 2020
2021 2020 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
From third parties KBEE=H 10,102 8,673
Less: allowance for doubtful debts L RIEEE (555) (340)
9,547 8,333

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The

credit period granted to the customers generally range from 30 to
90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts and based on the invoice date is as

FEBEEFPNEZFBRATIERKRE - AEPE

HEEESR RN FI0EWH - REEBELEE
REERRFORETRRES - ANEHRHES
JERER

A R B AR SRR (I R
B ORI A HTIOT

follows:

2021 2020
2021 F 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0-90 days 0E 90K 7,733 5,583
91-180 days 91 & 180K 771 1,269
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 1,033 637
Over 365 days 365 KA E 10 844
9,547 8,333

4
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 March 2021, trade receivables of approximately
HK$6,262,000 (2020: HK$4,404,000) were past due but were not
considered as default. These trade receivables related to customers
for whom are mainly listed companies or large property developers
with no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts and based on due
date, is as follows:

21. EZEWRIE(E)
R2021F3A31H &5 &I I8 46,262,000
7 70 (2020 4F : 4,404,000/ 7T ) & B HB1B i 48
RERD - RS E 5 MEWGRIEEY FT R H0E
MEF(XEALTARKAEEHEREMN) A
Mo ZEE 5 REIGUE (1K RERE) RIS
HEMEBRAIWOT

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 5

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

0-90 days 0ZE 90K 4,130 1,706
90-180 days 90 £ 180k 933 1,215
Over 180 days 180 KA 1,199 1,483
6,262 4,404

The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral over
these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, are
denominated in the following currencies:

AR [ 3 S h 5% B A AR YR A B St B A f) S

o
om °

RIBEHR - NEEE 5 EUKHOR (MR REE
18 REEA T EHEHE -

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

HK$ BT 9,032 8,006
EUR BT 132 127
RMB AR 383 118
MOP ek - 82
9,547 8,333
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22, OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22. HfttfEWFIE  ANFERES

DEPOSITS

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&T FHET

Deposits e 1,746 1,891

Prepayments FETFRIE 620 741

Value added tax receivables FE Y 3B {E T 93 172

Others Hih 34 35

2,493 2,839

Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default.

23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the

23.

FAEEWARBESRE o FF A LA AERH SR
BEYEIN B HE R CHRN R FIAAR

RITRBEER

MHEHR - AEBENRITMASERIZTIE

Group are denominated in the following currencies: BEtE -
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
HK$ BT 54,545 62,544
RMB AR 913 638
MOP JRPIHE 472 545
Us$ E7T 3,240 1,448
SGD F N T 2 2
59,172 65,147

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
However, under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ZEBER R EBARRAT / F352021

15 AR 3L R 7 51N 7R 58 <7 o B SN T IR AR %
BIE SERMNEERRE - Am - REPESI
FEEEGD  AEERERBERERRIMNESR

BHIRITIARBHBREMER -
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24. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period, based on the invoice date is as follows:

24. BHEMNFE

RBERR  REZAHMAENAEREZEN

HRIBMIRE DT -

2021 2020

2021 £F 2020 FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR T FAT

0-30 days 0ZE 30X 152 142
31-60 days 31 E60X 75 708
Over 60 days 60 XA E 272 48
499 898

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies:

RBERR - AEEB BN FTENKREERAT

FIEHEEHE |

2021 2020
2021 fF 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
HK$ BT 320 211
RMB AR 55 9
Us$ ey 123 659
EURO BT 1 19
499 898

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 25, HiENFERESTER
2021 2020
2021 fF 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fa&T FHET
Accruals for operations KB TEETE 3,667 2,921
Others Hith - 1,349
3,667 4,270
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEEE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BEBEESR BEEENHREBRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 & 20204 2021 F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHBIL FTET FHEL
Within one year —F R 1,699 1,904 1,597 1,804
In the second to fifth years, EFRERF
inclusive (BEEEMF) 1,319 1,224 1,285 1,175
3,018 3,128 2,882 2,979
Less: Future finance charges W RERRERY (136) (149)  N/ATER N/A T i
Present value of lease obligations HEEKEE 2,882 2,979 2,882 2,979

Less: Amount due for settlement RN 12EAREIHER

within 12 months (shown nes(RRdadE
under current liabilities) B THIR) (1,597) (1,804)
Amount due for settlement R12ER B EBEENEF
after 12 months 1,285 1,175
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of RBERR  AEENHERGREEBENTIE
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: WERTE -
2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 1,752 1,422
RMB AR 1,130 w557
2,882 2,979
The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is BEAREEaBENTHEEEEFIEE5% (2020
5% (2020: 5%). F 1 5%) o
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BHEE
2021 2020
2021 4 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T FHT
Contract liabilities S oh=Fr 7,726 5,604
The amounts represent the receipts from sales of maintenance and SR AKEREMREHERABBRESEN
other services exceed the revenue recognised on straight-line basis HASWHERR RN -
over the respective terms of contract.
Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAEHNEEESHNOT
2021 2020
2021 F 20204F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
Balance at 1 April N4 A1 Br% 5,604 5,168
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FARERY = (qu AR4A18H
recognising revenue during the year was AHEE) MEBNENEERD
included in the contract liabilities as at 1 April (5,191) (5,066)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing EE R E MR A LR
in advance of maintenance and other services &K A # & BN 7,313 5,502
Balance at 31 March A3 A31 B 7,726 5,604

775

RIMERR - GHNABNIRRAERETHEREM
accordance with the expiry date of the maintenance and other RIS A KIB0E /ﬁ%EﬂHﬁﬁ pax -l
service contracts entered into.

At the end of reporting period, contract liabilities were classified in

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FHET

Analysed for reporting purpose: ERER B Z DT ¢
Current liabilities mENEE 7,681 5,191
Non-current liabilities JEmEaE 45 413
7,726 5,604
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28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS

During the course of business, the Group would obtain banking
facilities in respect of import/export loans from a bank in Hong
Kong. At the end of the reporting period, no bank borrowing has
been drawn by the Group (2020: Nil).

The bank borrowings of the Group are arranged at floating rates,
thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The average
interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings during the reporting
period are as follows:

28.

RITER

EEBRED  ARE/E-HBENRITIVG
BRI HABERERITRE - RBEHR - K
S IR AR T (B 50 (2020 F « &) -

AEBNRITEFIILETE - A< AEE®
BRIREREN AR - REBER RS HENRT
AR R Z T -

2021 2020

2021 % 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FHET

Import/export loans #HOER 5% 5%

During the reporting periods, the Group’s import/export loans were
due within one year and contain a repayment on demand clause.

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by:

(@  An unlimited guarantee issued by certain subsidiaries of the
Company for the Group’s banking facilities as at 31 March
2020 and 2021; and

(b)  Registered security over deposits of the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company to the extent of
borrowing being drawn by the Group as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had undrawn facilities amounted
to approximately HK$5,000,000 (2020: HK$5,000,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$6,533,000 (2020: HK$1,798,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses approximately HK$802,000 (2020:
HK$1,798,000) that will expire in 5 years from the year it originated
for offsetting against future taxable profits.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

29.

NEEE - AEEME HOERN—FRE
HEERBESREREEGEK

REERRITEE B IS IHEIN -

(8) 20204 K2021FE3A31H AR AlH
FH B A AR AL ERITRVE B H M ER
BER &

(b) 202043831 AK2021E3 8318 « &t
KRB RARB G THE R BT KA
T AREERNERAR

MR2021F3A31H  REBRRERHRBREN A
5,000,000 7T (2020 £ : #75,000,000757T)

ELER IR

RBERER ASENKRDABEBEHLNA
6,533,000 % 7T (2020 4F : #91,798,000/87T) * 7]
FAVEHE S8 R SR FE R B ) o B PR 2R ) 2R 89
AR - M ZEE BT ERRECHIEE
E o 5P AKRRER B 1B B 18 /Y 85 18 49 802,000 7 7T
(20204 : #91,798,000/8 L) R EHEA# T
FRER - A AEE AR RERBORF]
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. WA
Number of
shares Amount
R EE &8
‘000 HK$’'000
T T
Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HRHEEO0.01 B T E i@
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, R20199F4 818 + 20203 A31H +
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 20204 H1 B K& 2021 3 A31H 5,000,000 50,000
Number of
shares Amount
R EE k-]
000 HK$’000
F iz FHET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SFEEEO0.01 B LT @A
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, K2019%F4 18 » 20203 A31H »
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 20204 A1 H & 20213 H31H 800,000 8,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises
all components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debts, redemption of existing debts or
selling assets to reduce debts. No change was made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
that to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of its entire issued share capital. The
Group receives a report from its share registrars weekly on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and
continuing compliance with the 25% limit from the date of the
Listing. As of 31 March 2021, 54.25% (2020: 41.75%) of the
shares of the Company were in public hands.

150

AEBEREARN A RAREREBFELL R
B BB BB B MRS R R R &
REHR - AEBEHNEAREFERREANMA
HRTTE -

REMBRE EERRKA K EFEERNERENE
BMEEEEEARNER - AEEBSBERIRMNRK
8 BITHREROBRENARETHEY B
BEBEEKLEEENRDEBRSEHF AN FHEE
& AN 2R - P E = 2021 F K 202043 A 31 H
IHFE EABEMBE  BERSUREMEER

#eh
=

o

M—AIMERGIEERERABREEE2IE TR
REBEBZED25% N RIFIRE AR RS B0 B 22 P ey
LA - AEEGEERERGBP SRR
LA RIERABRIBFRENEARDBENRE - &
FEE FTHHBEELETRMRE B2
20213 A31H &N A 7A54.25% (20204 :
41.75%) MR A ARALRES -
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. ZAQRMEHEARRE

COMPANY
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y E =Y 68 36
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRINIKRE 24,558 22 558
24,626 22,594
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEFRIE 242 294
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E O] 4,311 2,559
Bank and cash balances HRITRIRSERR 36,212 43,838
40,765 46,691
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued expenses FEETER 253 16
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBT B A B3k IE 5,014 3,411
5,267 3,427
Net current assets REBEEFE 35,498 43,264
NET ASSETS EEFHE 60,124 65,858
Capital and reserves EAXRR#E
Share capital A% A 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 52,124 57,858
TOTAL EQUITY MR 60,124 65,858
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 M2021 F6 22 B ES S RIRETIE -
June 2021.
Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline
E R e S Fodun
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32. RESERVES 32. R
(@) Group (a A%HE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein AEERFENSERAPNEHEREIE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss mEHEMEERERRGEEREEHRA
and other comprehensive income and consolidated 27 -

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) ZA&RAF
Share Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R4 ME PN RitEE Bzt

(note 32(c)(i)) (note 32(c)(v))
(MreEs2e)) (e 32(0) (v)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET
At 1 April 2019 R2019%F 4 A1 H 51,682 22,458 (10,796) 63,344
Loss and total FREBRREE K
comprehensive income R
for the year - - (5,486) (5,486)
At 31 March 2020 and R 202063 A31H
1 April 2020 K& 2020F 4 A1 H 51,682 22,458 (16,282) 57,858
Loss and total FRBERZERES
comprehensive income #azm
for the year - - (5,734) (5,734)
At 31 March 2021 7"20213H31H 51,682 22,458 (22,016) 52,124
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32. RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(i)

(i)

(i)

()

(v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue
and issuance costs of shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregated amount of share capital, share premium
and capital reserve of subsidiaries comprising the
Group at the date on which Power Truth Holdings
Limited (“Power Truth”), the then holding company of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group, was acquired
by the Company, over the nominal value of 2,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015.

Legal reserve

The Macao Commercial Code number 377 requires
that companies incorporated in Macau should set
aside a minimum of 25% of their respective profit after
income tax to the legal reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of their
capital.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(bj(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose from the excess of the
consideration over the nominal value of the 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015. The
consideration represented the net asset value of Power
Truth as at 30 September 2015.

EL DM REERRAR / F352021

32. f#fE(E)

(c)

RENTERRE

()

(i)

(i)

(i)

V)

17w
RIERASHEHERFNE  ARRRMD R
BEREMNESAIHIIRTFARARRE
EEEERZEDRIREE A% - AQA
BRENTER BB XS BRESEH
BT o

OyEBERASRERROEENE
REBETRMDPAELRNRE @ WO &N
BRERNME BT RN EITHIRA

BOHREE
EURBIEAEEE THB AR
ANRWEAREEE B AR E R
TRA T IERBR AT (TR
EHZBRA - BRERENEEE
B HARBIRE2015F11 A10H
Y 5= (3] 25 46 24 7T R 2,000 B A% 17 E (B
2R ZEE -

JEERE
BPIREME 77 R E - R
MAZH R RIRK & BERPIS TR
MR D2BRBANEEREH  BEER
1 45 81 E BB F R B BN 50% HY 7K
FRLE -

SMNEIRE (F
HNEME B IERRE S INER
BHREMEENMEENZ58 - #
1R PR ARG B 755 R 3R B 5 4(b) (i) Pk AY
SHERRERE

A E

MABKRELEBREBLARARE
2015 11 A 10 HWE E EHEITH
1,000 A% i% 17 FEIME 2 258 o R E R
B 2015 9 A 30 HHEEFE -

-
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33.

154

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 January 2018, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt a share
option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) to recognise and
motivate the contributions that eligible participants have made or
may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 18 January
2018 will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective
date to 17 January 2028. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 January 2018.

There was no share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date and up to
the end of the reporting period.

33.

BRAESTE
2018F 1 A18H ' ARRIBREEMAZRE BB
LA R B SR SR A g AR A =t 21 ([ S AR Ao 2l )
IR RABEERSEENNEEBEL A
BETELB AL

AAER2018F 1 A 18 BIRMMBIET B8 H
ERARE2028F 1 A17 BIEW T+ FHR%KFHE
W RAREREGENFBEHNAARBEA
20184 1 A 30 HMBREFRMI&5Y -

BAMBMEREERSHAR  ARAHMERE
B A AE 5t B R L (AR B AR -
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34. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are

34. HEAA
AR B R RR 2021 43 A 31 HYFF BRI

set out below: T
Place/date of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
£ HMRL/HLhY,/ RS EEMREERE FERERRAL TTEBHREERY
Direct  Indirect
Ef 553
Power Truth British Virgin Islands, 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
28 August 2014 of US$1 each
iz AERLES 1,000 kS REE 100% - REER FE
2014F8F 28R 1ETHLER
Prime Intelligence Management Hong Kong, HK$100,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 24 April 2018
ELEEEERRAT Bk 100,000 7T 100% - EBEX FR
2018F 4 F 241
Prime Intelligence Information Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Technology Company Limited 20 April 2020
EZEREARRERAT £k 1,000,000/ 100% - BER FR
2020F4 H208
Prime Intelligence Trading Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 20 April 2020
EZEHESERAR Bl 1,000,000 57T 100% - Ee%EE
202054 A208
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong, HK$1,500,000 - 100%  Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 7 June 1999 security products; and provision of
application software, Hong Kong
EAREBRAR e 1,500,000 T - 100% HEEMEESNRERRRER
1999F6A7H REREEARARYS  BE
Solution Expert Engineering Hong Kong, HK$10,000 - 100%  Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 9 April 2001 security products; and provision of system
installation, application software and repair
and maintenance services, Hong Kong
EHIRARAR Eh 10,0007 - 100% HEEMREBRIEERRRER : RREHZES
2001F4A9H 2 ERRARHUREEREERY FF
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding; sales of biometrics
(R&D) Limited 30 May 2003 identification devices and security products;
and provision of application software,
Hong Kong
EAMRARERERAT e 1,000,000 57T - 100% RERR : BEENMSHENRERRZER
200365 A 30R RittEREA S BS
Solution Expert Technology Macau, MOP25,000 - 100%  Sales and provision of installation and
(Macau) Limited 13 September 2004 maintenance of security and information
technology system, Macau
EARR (R BRAA ! 25,000 279% - 100% HERRERZRAAMRZGNREREE -
2004594138 i
ERRE ) EBAT PRC, Registered and - 100%  Sales of biometrics identification evices;
("SE Shenzhen’) 22 October 2003 paid up capital of and provision of application software and
HK$10,000,000 related after-sale services, PRC
SRR (RINERAA e B R A - 100% HEEMEHEAIRE: RiEEEREARER
(r=amI) 200810 22 10,000,000 7 RBERRT - B
Note: SE Shenzhen is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the B - BRI A —HE I)ﬂZ.LE’J@I\Fﬁ?Eﬁu:%
PRC. —
EZ S EMARAR / F1§2021 155




Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021F3H31 BILFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35.

CASH FLOWS

(@)

156

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash charges. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

RERERBRME
(@) BMEFHRELEBEZHER

TR AKEREEIMELREZH
MED BRASKIFRSED - BER
PHRELAZBEDNREREBSLIARKR
ERBHENAEEGARERERIER
RERDASRERBZAE -

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE2021£3A31BLLEE

1 April New lease Cash Interest Exchange 31 March

2020 arrangement flows charges realignment 2021

2020 2021

4818  HEERY BeRE FSER EXHE 3A31A

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FEx FEx FiEx FEx FiEx FiEx

Lease liabilties (note 26) BERE(Hit26) 2,979 2,200 (2,586) 176 104 2,882
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31 HLLEFE

1 April New lease Cash Interest Exchange 31 March

2019 arrangement flows charges realignment 2020

20194 2020%

4R1R HHEERH Beng MEER 5B 37818

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAET FAT TAT TAET TET

Lease liabiltes (note 26) REaEHH26) 3,561 1,711 (2,297) 193 (189) 2,979

Bank borrowings (note 2) RITER(H7E28) - - (16) 16 - -

3,561 1,71 2,313 209 (189) 2,979
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for lease

35. REREREBRME(H)

(b) HERSRHERE

BREERERERANEESEBENT

comprise the following: £IF :
2021 2020
2021 5 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
Within operating cash flows KEREREN 176 193
Within financing cash flows BMERSREAN 2,410 2,104
2,586 2,297
These amounts relate to the following: HLATIEE MRS ¢
2021 2020
2021 F 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FHT
Lease rental paid B 2,586 2,297
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAREIE
As of 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any capital HE2021F M2020F3 A31H « KK E W&
commitments. {a] &I o
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. HAREE

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period (2020: Nil).

EL DM REERRAR / F352021
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BHBAIRS
Save for those transactions or balances of related parties disclosed RIGAMBHMEREMESHBRENZZAR IS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had siaEeRIN  AEBRFRNEEBE A THEKR
the following material transactions with its related parties during the R5 e
year.
(@) Transactions with related parties (@) EEBEEE A HWIRB
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MfaE F#&T FHT
Sales of goods to related companies: [A1FHE A 7 HEE M@ ¢
— Long Yield Company Limited — AR R ([ER])
(“Long Yield”) (), (in) 50 140
— SoHo Business Center Limited — SoHo Business Center
(“SoHo”) Limited ([ SoHo ]) (i), (i) 3 2
53 142
Services rendered to related R BAEE N RIIR AR ¢
companies:
— Long Yield — B (1), (i) 106 109
— SoHo — SoHo (i), (iii) 96 124
202 233
Rental expenses paid to a BB AR MESRY
related company
— Global Technology Corporation  — #EEEAR AT ([#HEF])
Limited (“Global Technology”) (1), (iii) 900 858
— Brilliant Capital Resources Limited — SR & RNER AT ([EE])
(“Brilliant”) (i), (iv) 450 -
1,350 -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38.

(@) Transactions with related parties (continued)
Notes:

0} The pricing of the related party transactions are mutually
agreed by the Group and related companies.

(ii) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are directors of Long
Yield.

(iii) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are able to exercise
significant influence over SoHo and Global Technology.

(iv) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are able to exercise
control over Birilliant.

(b) Key Management Compensation
Key management mainly represents the Company’s
directors. Their remunerations have been disclosed in note
13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

39. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2021.
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Five Year Financial Summary

L FETBEHRE

Year ended/As at 31 March
HBZ3ANALEE R3A3NE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 % 20204 2019 F 20184 2017 F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT FHT FHT FAT
OPERATING RESULT REEE
Revenue 2§ 45,987 50,842 50,878 71,063 63,522
Cost of sales and services rendered 4% & & 1R ARF AL A (26,201) (26,264) (25,054) (29,016) (25,505)
Gross profit ER 19,786 24,578 25,824 42,047 38,017
Other income HgA 2,466 891 702 230 94
Selling and distribution costs HERDHMA (4,840) (6,141) (5,749) (6,121) (4,826)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EMFAS (23,817) (22,933) (21,976) (29,645) (16,715)
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 el 38 i & &5 12 (215) (162) - - -
Profit/(loss) from operation "R/ (BR) (6,620) (2,767) (1,199) 7,511 16,715
Finance costs BA RS AR (176) (209) 28) (75) (142)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBADER, (FE) (6,796) (2,976) (1,227) 7,436 16,428
Income tax expense g iiba (305) (402) (259) (3,222) (2,904)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRERN/(BE) (7,101) (3,378) (1,486) 4214 13,524
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEEKE
for the year, net of tax: MERBIIF
[tems that may be reclassified to A EN N EEEREN
profit or loss: R
Exchange differences on REBINETS 2
translating foreign operations [EHZ%8 538 (418) (273) 690 (400)
Total comprehensive income AATREEA
for the year attributable to the EEER
owners of the Company 2HEREEEE (6,563) (3,796) (1,759) 4,904 13,124
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets BEE 97,096 102,518 108,590 111,758 46,871
Total liabilities FEY= (14,892) (13,751) (13,695) (12,949) (12,642)
Net assets BETFE 82,204 88,767 94,895 98,815 34,229
Equity attributable to owners ERRERA
of the Company e 82,204 88,767 94,895 98,815 34,229
1 60 Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
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